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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBEERASEHN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 75, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(BEREAHMNMEHZ E) and was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a Cambodian
Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong Kong company in 1968
as an importing agent for watch distribution business in Cambodia, had
extensive experience of distributing watches in Cambodia and Vietnam.
Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson and Mr. Duong
Ming Chi, Henry and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a controlling
shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, aged 40, holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Interior Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree
in Art, Design and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University.
After graduation, Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson has practiced in an
architecture firm in London for 2 years. Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
is a son of Mr. Eav Yin and a brother of Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry,
both are Executive Directors of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 22nd November 2006.

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, aged 52, was educated at the University
of Southern California. Mr. Duong has more than 30 years of
experiences in the watch branding and retailing industries. He was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 7th July 2011.
Before that, he was appointed as the Executive Director from the
listing of the Company in 1989 and subsequently resigned on 31st
August 1996 to pursue his personal career. Mr. Duong is a son of
the Chairman, Executive Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, Mr. Eav Yin and is the elder brother of Mr. Eav Ming Keong,
Kinson, who is an Executive Director of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 57, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai is an existing
independent non-executive director of Guorui Properties Limited
which was listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 7th
July 2014. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai held directorship as
independent non-executive director of The Sun’s Group Limited during
the years from 2002 to 20083.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 45, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted to
both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in 1993.
Ms. Wong is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th
December 2006. She is also a member of the nomination committee,
the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 45, has more than 20 years
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a
firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Kwok Sing, Sammy, aged 56, joined the Group in 1989. Mr.
Poon has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale and
brand management. During the period from April 1992 to March 1993,
he was elected as the Director of the Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited which is an official association representing
the watch industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon is the general manager in
charge of the Group’s watch retailing business in the PRC.

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 47, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has around 20 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

agan
BIREs15m A N
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR E
2015 2014 Change
—E-HF —ZT—E BE
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B &5
Operations Fg—
Revenue SE U ON 719 967 (26)
Loss attributable to owners EERARARFAEAZER
of the Company (31) (153) N/A
i A
Loss per share — Basic FREE-EX (2.11 HK cents) (11.21 HK cents) N/A
(2.1178 1) (11.2171L) TEA
Interim dividend declared and paid BB Rk 2+ HRE - -
Final dividend proposed after WMEARBRIRE 2 RBARE
the end of the reporting period = -
Financial position B AR R
Total assets mEE 732 840 (13)
Equity attributable to FERAARFEE AR
owners of the Company 411 396 4
Non-controlling interests I 22 A% A% SR A 2 - 10 (100)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year was HK$719 million which was 26%
lower than HK$967 million of last year. Gross profit margin dropped
slightly from 22% to 21% due to intense market competition. Sales
from mainland China were decreased by 26% to HK$343 million while
average same store sales in China were decreased by 8%. On the other
hand, sales in Hong Kong were decreased by 26% to HK$374 million
due to the closure of two non-profitable stores during the year.

During the year, the Group had closed 9 stores (mainly non-profitable
ones) and opened 1 store in Shanghai.

The total number of stores is as below:

12 B515m MK i

3 e

KNEEAEE 2 & 5% B719,000,0008 70 * BREAF
7] # #9967,000,0007% 7T T f£26% ° F 1 T 45 3t 5 &
R EFEE22% M T FEFI21% © 2R 8 H B K RE &Y
$ & 588 0 26% = 343,000,000 7T © M B FHRE
HERRAD8% - Z—HME ' BBRHERIRL26% 2
374,000,000 7T : Ty B 4F /A 7 B o 0 428 61 AT [ ) U5 o

FA-AKEEHEANEER(ZEREMNATREE) &
R EERR—fEER -

JEERET -

As at As at
31st March 31st March
2015 2014
R=-Z—1F R-E— E¢

=R=t-8 =ZA=1-—
Beijing = 3 7
Shanghai & 3 4
Shenyang &5 1 2
Chengdu Bk %D 2 2
Hong Kong BB 1 3
10 18
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Results review

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$719 million for the year ended
31st March 2015, (2014: HK$967 million) which was 26% lower than
last year. Sales from the mainland China decreased by 26% to HK$343
million as compared with HK$461 million of last year was due to the
slow down of the market and closure of non-profitable stores during
the year. Sales in Hong Kong decreased by 26% to HK$374 million as
compared with HK$503 million of last year due to the closure of non-
profitable stores during the year.

Distribution costs decreased by 35% to HK$230 million as compared
with HK$353 million of last year was mainly due to the decrease in
depreciation charge, rental and staff cost due to the closure of stores
and tightening control in expenses. Administrative expenses decreased
by 15% to HK$29 million as compared with HK$34 million of last year
which was mainly due to the decrease in equity-settled share-based
payment expenses in this year.

Valuation gains on investment properties increased by 186% to HK$40
million as compared with HK$14 million of last year as a result of the
increase in the valuation of the properties located in Hong Kong.

Other net gain amounting to HK$18 million this year was mainly due
to the net effect as a result of reversal of other tax payable and the
store closure cost and impairment loss on other receivables and
prepayments.

Finance costs decreased by 33% to HK$8 million as compared with
HK$12 million of last year was due to the decrease in bank loans during
the year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2015, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$23 million (2014: HK$40 million). The decrease was mainly due to
the repayment of bank loans during the year. The Group has secured
banking facilities amounting to HK$37 million which were secured by
certain inventories, bank deposits, leasehold properties, prepaid lease
payments, investment properties, rental assignment, assignment of
dividends and shareholder’s receivable as well as unlimited corporate
guarantee provided by the Company. In October 2014, the Company
had issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares pursuant to the completion
of the placing and raised around HK$50 million. Gearing ratio of the
Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowing, over total equity, was
27% as at 31st March 2015 (2014: 46%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks, and when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SRR DI

Prospects RE2

Despite reporting financial loss of HK$31 million, the Group had BEREH31,000,0008 TR HEE - AEEELE
generated a positive cash flow of HK$25 million from operating JEENH B E 425,000,000 T IEIR &R ©
activities.

In Hong Kong, declining luxury watch sales has become the so-called EEE REFHREETHREEKNBAEBNIEAE -
new normal. The spending pattern of mainland tourists has changed. Wi E ) E B RA B E T #1 -

The Group has basically closed down all its non-core stores in China NEBEN DT B AETA IR E AR
and cut corporate overhead. Baring unforeseen circumstances, the BEMAX -MBEARAEHNEET  PREEEBHH

financial performance of China retailing unit will further improve. MBARRAG AT B — P2 o

In July 2015, the Group will work with a PRC local operator to open —E-hFtLA AEEBEFEEH -ELEEE
a Rolex and Tudor boutique in Hangzhou Tower, one of the most E EHBREEZENEBEEE 2 — MM KERK
important strategical retail locations in China. —EABNETRFHEESE -

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence REBREERAG CUBKEN  URBELSER
to turnaround its business. EERA -

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive EREALSE  HWERE  FP - HEMKBBALLS
supportive of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates. FAEBNBIRSIF  BABRRHE -
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 on the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 17 on the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2015 and the state
of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 37 to 130.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2015
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 12.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 30 on the financial statements.

Changes in issued share capital of the Company during the year are
also outlined below:

On 24th September 2014, the Company, Century Hero International
Limited (the “Vendor”) and Get Nice Securities Limited as agent of
the Vendor entered into the placing agreement to place the shares
comprising up to 200,000,000 issued shares owned by the Vendor at
the price of HK$0.2550 per share.

The Vendor and the Company, upon their execution of the placing
agreement, also entered into the subscription agreement to top up the
shareholdings of the Vendor in the Company. Under the subscription
agreement, the Vendor subscribed for the subscription shares in the
equivalent number of the placing shares placed out. The subscription
shares were issued at HK$0.2550 per share, being equivalent to the
placing price. The subscription agreement was completed on 8th
October 2014 and the Company had issued 200,000,000 ordinary
shares pursuant to the subscription agreement. The above transactions
generated a net proceeds of approximately HK$49.7 million which was
mainly used as general working capital and, in a lesser proportion,
to repay its loans, including bank loans. Further details of the above
transactions are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
24th September 2014.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors have not declared any interim dividend (2014: Nil HK

cent) and did not propose any final dividend for the year ended 31st
March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 17 on the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 on the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 16 on the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 32 on the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of Company’s listed securities during the year.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 24 on the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2015, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 50% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 93% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
1.7% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on pages 131 to 132.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry

Mr. André Francois Meier (resigned on 31st July 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry and Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERTBIOIBRASKRRMN  BFARMKRESD

Zigm

RZZ-—RAF=A=+—B ARAEERTETHK
ABEARBREEMAAEEE (EER(EHFLEE
B (15 7 R ARG RG] ]) SEXVER) R iy - E B (D
SEFEFEE  MRIEEF LB EHIEXVEET R
F8NBABHMARB LML AMER AR (BIER
BESRMBEGRI 2 ZSHEXREREFRERESR
ZEmEORR) - RIRBE F R B EAIFE35215 5 E
BIAMENARTHEFZECMREKBEEHAR
SAARRARES EMARR (T EMmRAD) M+ mE
ZETBETABRETESFR SNRESTA ([REST
Al EBAARR LB ER LOARNT -

RAELSRMREBRARMB2EE

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BEER BEREE BT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 02 TEER IR 45
BEEgR EREE HERHEHE BYESH
%

Mr. Eav Yin BIEE Note ffi+ 800,507,473 51.09
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson CLEE: i Personal {8 A 3,614,550" 0.23
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry HHRELE Personal & A 4,089,600" 0.26
Mr. Lai Si Ming HEBERLE Personal {8 A 366,625* 0.02
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline FrEGFZ L Personal i A 366,625* 0.02
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent FEFLAE Personal & A 366,625* 0.02

Note: Among the 800,507,473 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 70,688,600 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin of which 2,933,000 shares are share options, (b) 1,809,200 shares
are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 582,421,337
shares by Century Hero International Limited, (d) 1,864,800 shares by
Debonair Company Limited, (e) 19,972,728 shares by Goodideal Industrial
Limited, (f) 2,550,672 shares by Hexham International Limited, (g) 2,846,536
shares by Goodness Management Limited and (h) 118,353,600 shares
by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust). Century Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited,
Hexham International Limited, and Goodness Management Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav
Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the
founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.
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B All the 3,614,550 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Ming Keong,
Kinson of which 2,199,750 shares are share options.

u All the 4,089,600 shares are personal interest of Mr. Duong Ming Chi,
Henry.

* All the interests are related to the share options held by the respective
Directors.

Save as disclosed herein and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME”, as at 31st March 2015, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group had made certain continuing connected transactions with
a connected person group during the four financial years ended 31st

March 2015, details as below:

Transactions with the following entities are considered as continuing
connected transactions for the relevant years.
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Name of party Relationship

£8 2R

Eav Yin The Chairman and executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company

B RAREFRAITES RIZRAR

Connected Persons Group

Companies ultimately controlled by an associate of Mr. Eav Yin and for the

avoidance of doubt, excluding the Group

Lucky Linker Limited
BEALTEBKE

REBBCEE—RBRERRTEN AR ARERRE  TEELAEH

A member of the Connected Persons Group
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2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF —T—NmNF =—T-—= T-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HiE FET FET FET FET
Sales of watch movements to: HEFHBO T !
a member of Connected Persons Group B8 A TS @K & (iv) 1,223 1,869 4,471 6,343
Purchase of watch movements from: REF&HHEOH :
a member of Connected Persons Group BEALTEEKE (iv) - 359 - 1,276
Provision of subsidised advertising REELEEBRTS
and marketing support to: BEEXE 7 0]
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited 208 3,000 1,950 937
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 953 - - -
1,161 3,000 1,950 937
Leasing of offices and warehouses to: HEBRAERAET :
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited (ii) 360 264 126 126
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 862 866 564 509
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 748 758 738 467
1,970 1,888 1,428 1,102
Purchase of products from: REERH: (iii)
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 450 896 5,288 1,939
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 8 64 67 50
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATSEKE 8 67 456 58
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited 2,272 1,314 3,054 1,974
2,738 2,341 8,865 4,021
Notes: Btz -
(i)  Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing support services () REELEEHETSEBRIERS
The Group participated in the marketing programs and activities for ANt @ 2 B i Lucky Linker Limited 2 E@ A 5 EK B

promoting and enhancing the image of branded watches supplied by Lucky
Linker Limited and a member of Connected Persons Group. In return, Lucky

Rt IS HEERT 8 KR ) - DARER NG AR F R
5 o Btk fiLucky Linker Limited & B8 A + £ E Rk
BRAAEEASNESHBERENAER -

Linker Limited and a member of Connected Persons Group subsidised the
Group by paying an advertising subsidy to the Group.
(i) Leasing of offices and warehouses (i) HEBRLEREE
The Group leased certain premises owned by the Group to Lucky Linker EEHEBAAAEERHEE 2E T WE FLucky Linker
Limited and other members of the Connected Persons Group for rental Limited 2B A TEBHEMKE RARIEARES WA -
income.
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(i)

(iv)

Purchase of products

The Group purchased products from Lucky Linker Limited and other
members of the Connected Persons Group including watches, watch spare
parts and components (including watch movements), watch accessories
and packaging. The Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and repairs to the Connected
Persons Group. The purchase of products includes the fees and charges for
these services.

Trading of watch movements

The Group conducted trading of watch movements with a member of the
Connected Persons Group.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the

independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive

Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions

have been entered into:

(a)

(b)

(c)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties; and

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, has confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the

auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that:

1.

the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company;

the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions; and

have exceeded the cap.

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected

transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions

mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2015, which may also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules, are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction are carried out and disclosed in
compliance with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is to
encourage qualifying grantees to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related consultant,
agent, representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide goods
or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any
customer of the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any affiliate.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Amendment”) had been approved at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26th August 2008. Details of the Refreshment and
the Amendment were contained in the circular to shareholders dated
1st August 2008. The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on
20th September 2012.

The Company has issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options
to the qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the
exercise prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share
respectively. Upon the completion of the share consolidation and
rights issue in January 2013 and February 2013 respectively, both the
exercise prices and the numbers of share options have been adjusted
according to the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 2015,
the outstanding amount of share options was 21,410,900.

20| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

FZEALRS

RBE-Z-OAF=-A=+—ALFEHMR HLE
BAIVHMEAMERS RELTRAEITAEBER
MEXFRIGERERD - NP IERRMEI4PHEE -

FERN LAEERSABERERS 9B
AIE14AEN BB EREITTRIFE -

BB ET

ESNENAIES

BEX - HEMEXS I MREEN  E5FF
EXEFATARELESAAL  DEEFLEESD
AARREEAMBEBARN R —TEFA UEERA
NAEFERcEEXMERFE AR -

B AR &St 2

R-ZBZE-_FAA=-1+H AR ﬂﬁﬁ%}tt}@%ﬁm%ﬁﬁ%
B E (22 _FBREE]) - 2T _F0
BREFEZBENDEBEERARABNRBARER
HEREEZNGRAARNRBARARN ZEE - =%
*ﬁﬁ%%ﬁgmAﬁﬁﬁﬁA%®$@iﬁEﬁw
RAREMBBRANEMNES  HEMEERKE
@Z@ﬁ HEA ﬁ%?@ﬁ BADIEENN TYEH
B AR REMEEQRREEMHRE 2 EFHE
%~ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ-mm$ B SR AE AT B8 TJE
5B AR 2 ERIFF ¢ S(iv)AR R SEAME QR
SEMHBERAR 2 EBARREELRBH -

FH_FT_FREREFBZEELR(TEH]) RE
T_77_¢%k%J%wWZﬁW( gRIERE=

ZNFNAZ+RE Zﬂxﬁﬂiﬁ/\%&ﬁ&ﬂ o BT
&DJ%%E%K_vqﬂiﬂﬂ R#GERR 2B
A — B2 FEREFICR T —FAA-T
B & o

RZE——F=A=+—HBEZE—F+A=+~
H XARRB-_ST_FHERETSE meaERE
¥ ¥ % ¥:17146,800,00015 % 34,170,00015 A] ;R EE A A
Tt%%$ﬁow%mz @%Zﬁh% HiTEE
)DjuﬁfrlHXO 394/%75&0 263/%71 © = 7& H &
—E—=F= HZ&PAW&ﬁW”%nﬁé Ri&
—ET_FHEREE BRENTEEREE W
ERBEEAZR - R-_T—AF=A=+—8" #H*X
1T 2 BB A% A21,410,90015 ©



The exercise price of any share option is the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a share; (ii) the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii)
the average closing price of the share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The validity period of share options shall be vested in the grantees over
a time period of five years commencing from the date of grant above.
For each of such five years, 20% of the share options granted to the
grantees will vest. The vested share options shall be valid for a period
of ten years from the date of grant and shall lapse at the expiry of the
option period.

The total number of shares available for issue under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme, the share award plan approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 13th September 2010 and any other share
option schemes, after adjustment made for the share subdivision in
November 2010, the share consolidation in January 2013 and the rights
issue in February 2013, was 58,782,332 shares which represented
approximately 3.8% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31st
March 2015. In respect of the maximum entitlement of each grantees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
grantees in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.

As at 31st March 2015, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company (market value per share at 31st March 2015 was
HK$0.229) granted for a nominal consideration under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. The share options are unlisted. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$0.2 of the Company.
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No. of shares
No. of share No.of  acquired on
options share exercise of
outstanding  No. of share options share  No. of share
at the options lapsed options options Period Period during
beginning of granted during during  outstanding during which which share
the year during the year the year at year end share options options are Exercise
£4 the year ER EnfifE Ex are vested exercisable price per
Directors HATESN  ERELN %%z  EREES  HATEN Date of grant EER e share
B= BREHE  BREHE  BREHMR  <RG¥A  BREEA RHAH BRENER BRENER BRTEE
Mr. Eav Yin 2,933,000 - - - 2,933,000 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
BLRE 5% 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
ZA=t-8 °F *i A=tBE  ZZ-ZF=f=tRZ
Z3-7E=R=1H “5--%-f=1A
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 2,199,750 - - - 2,199,750 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
hRsLE 5k 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
ZA=t+-8 “5- ‘¢ A=tBE -%--FzB=1BHZ
St S e ZRI-EZA=TH
Mr. André Francois Meier 10,022,061 - (10,022,061) - - 26th Octobr 2011 25th Qctober 2012 to 25th Qctober 2012 to HKS0.897
(resigned on 31st July 2014) 5% 25th October 2016 25th Qctober 2021 0.8975 T
André Francois Meler’t tAZ17A ZT ZE+AZTRRE ZE-ZEtACTRAE
(R=F-BELA=1-REH) SERETACHER CE--£tA-tER
Mr. Lai Si Ming 366,625 - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
BRHEL “F-k 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
SIS :2:@ A=tAZ ZE-Z§=A=tHZ
ZE-REZR=TH ZEC-EZA1R
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 366,625 - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
IEFRT 2--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
=R=+-H ZT-ZFSfStBE ZR-CEZRSTHE
ZE-REZAZTA ZBZ-%=R=1H
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 366,625 - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
FEERE 5% 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
=R=1-H “5--F-A-tBE CZEF-ZH-f=tHEZ
“E-EZAZ1H “T-FZf=1H
Employees 17,817,975 - (2,639,700) - 15,178,275 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
g1 “3--f 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 13445 T
ZA=t-A TE-IEZASTHE ZE-IEZACTEE
_z /\ﬁ,ﬁjﬁ :;_—EHHE
Total 34,072,661 - (12,661,761) - 21,410,900
it

BYREF BREANSESZEEEREM &
NREZEBA - N_ZE——F=ZA=+—AK=-%F
——F+tAZ+RE AR ZEOHETEZEBERE
$B ke H B AT 9 5l /30.3978 7T [20.26/E 7T ©

The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

FEA  BE_ST_FHERETE12,661,76110 K
ORI -

During the year, 12,661,761 share options were lapsed under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme as disclosed herein, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent on 31st August 2010, pursuant to
which the placing agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to
subscribe for convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) issued by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000
on a “best-efforts” basis. On 27th September 2010, the Company
completed the placing of HK$100,800,000 Convertible Notes to
independent placees. The Convertible Notes carry interest at 3% per
annum and the principal amounts of all Convertible Notes shall be
due and repayable on the third anniversary of the date of issue. The
Convertible Notes entitle their holders to convert their outstanding
principal amounts into new conversion shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.84 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Notes, the Conversion Price of the Convertible Notes was adjusted
from HK$0.84 per Conversion Share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share
as a result of the share subdivision approved by the shareholders of
the Company on 12th November 2010. The above adjustment took
effect from the close of business of 15th November 2010. Upon the
completion of the share consolidation and the rights issue in January
2013 and February 2013, the conversion price of the Convertible Notes
was further adjusted to HK$1.68 and HK$0.573 per share respectively.
The final adjustment was effective on 16th January 2013. The
General Mandate (2009), which has not been used before the placing
agreement, was used for the allotment and issue of the conversion
shares. On 27th September 2013, all outstanding Convertible Notes
have been redeemed by the Company.
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On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”).
The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award
and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging or facilitating the
holding of shares by those selected employees of the Group who, as
determined by the Board, are eligible to participate in the plan and to
whom new shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use
of the plan to award new shares to those selected employees of the
Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2015 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2015, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:

RIZ—ZFFNATZ=0 " ARRBRRIERARND
K@ ([ REFH (T —FF))) - RO ER
(=2 —2F) T FHR BRI R L %At
g EERBRENZEHETEECRAERSH
ZAtBZARBEERREBRARD - W EBRIK
- -BEERZMZE  URAENEIIEAEERE
BRAEEFHERZ REYEDH -

BN RZZE-—RAF=ZA=+—HARALERITE
mkES  BRE - RRELEUEN  URRE
NEB|BETRTEREMZEREMATRBES  BR
- RS ELER -

BRARPZEKRIES

R=B—R4=A=+—H0 BEMAAREERE
EFRABFA - THIAL (FAAEEREETRA
BB SN RAL T2 45 BABRIRR A 0 A A2 RIS B
FRAS%HRE % - IR ES S GO EXVE B2 R
SHH KX ANAATRE - RRFRAAFAFEE
2B R M RS R DI E336/E T R 2 1
WA

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each/

underlying Approximate

shares held percentage of

BREE issued share

FRKRo.2}8 T capital

Name of shareholder Notes ZER EEBITRA

KRR EB M & HEROEHE BHAES T

%

Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e B+ 800,507,473 51.09

Century Hero International B BB R A A 2 582,421,337 37.17

Limited

Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding 3 118,353,600 7.55
Corporation Corporation

Convenhills Limited Convenhills Limited 4 128,510,486 8.20
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Notes:

1. These shares include 1,809,200 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 798,698,273 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

4. Convenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late
Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and
Mr. Leong Siew Khuen.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2015, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 234 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2015. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2015 were
audited by CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF”). CCIF will retire as the auditor
of the Company at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and will not offer themelves for re-appointment because
of its merger of business with PCP CPA Limited resulting in Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited operating as the merged firm. Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited is a member firm in Hong Kong for Crowe
Horwath International. As a result of these changes, a resolution for the
appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as the new auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE
The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th June 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2015 except for the deviation from the code provisions
A.4.1 and D.1.4 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as provided in the Bye-Laws. As the Company is bound by
the provision of the 1989 Act, at this time, the Bye-Laws cannot be
amended to fully reflect the requirements of the Code. As such, a
special resolution was passed at the special general meeting held on
28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of the Company so that, inter
alia, (i) every director (save for a director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) of the Company shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years; (ii) a director may be removed
by an ordinary resolution in general meeting instead of a special
resolution; and (iii) any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Eav Yin,
the Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting. The
Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive officer
is divided between the remaining executive directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less
exacting than those in the Code.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. Company should have formal letters
of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointments.
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The Company has not entered into any written letters of appointment
with its Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors
have already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to
directors of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to
act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions; and (iii) the current
arrangement has been adopted by the Company for several years and
has proven to be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the
Directors are able to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective
manner under the current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner. The Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices by emphasising a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all the shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on page 4 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 5 Board regular meetings
were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration
Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were
held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these
meetings was set out below:
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
EspE EEEER EREEEER FHEESEEE REZEES8R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Eav Yin B EE 5/5 N/AA i 11 11
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 18R 98 ST A 4/5 N/A i F N/A i A N/AT i A
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry AR E 4/5 N/A i A N/A i A N/A i A
Mr. André Francois Meier André Francois Meierst 4 0/1 N/AT 3 B N/A7T 3 N/AT 3 F
(Note) (Kt:2)
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lai Si Ming BERLAE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline THEFZL 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent FEFLEE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1

Note:  Mr. André Francois Meier resigned as an Executive Director with effect

from 31st July 2014.

Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Eav
Ming Keong, Kinson and Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry who are both
Executive Directors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there is
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board or between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2015, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,566,000 (2014: HK$1,654,000) and HK$371,000 (2014:
HK$354,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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PREIWS

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
35 to 36 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department, had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group including material controls over financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 18th September 2014, all
directors (except Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline) were present to
answer questions raised by shareholders and a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting out the Proposal; and (ii) a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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PREIWS

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 19/F, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 37 to 130, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st March 2015, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31st March 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30th June 2015

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mOBER

For the year ended 31st March 2015 #HZE—-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-hE —E—OF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue EEL PN 5 718,580 967,353
Cost of sales S5 AL AN (570,552) (754,386)
Gross profit EF 148,028 212,967
Valuation gains on investment properties ‘EMEZ HERE 40,481 13,791
Other revenue H Az 6 24,962 30,579
Distribution costs o EAK AR (230,213) (353,014)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (28,834) (33,788)
Other net gain/(loss) Hunlezs/(E518) F5E 7 18,294 (11,055)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 9(a) (7,691) (12,470)
Loss before taxation MRBATE R 9 (34,973) (152,990)
Income tax FriS %t 11 (54) (196)
Loss for the year REEEFIE (35,027) (153,186)
Attributable to: SHER
Owners of the Company AATEEA (30,936) (153,278)
Non-controlling interests FERBRRERS (4,091) 92
(35,027) (153,186)
Loss per share SRER 13
Basic (HK cents) EARCGEM) (2.11) (11.21)
Diluted (HK cents) s CB) (2.11) (11.21)

The notes on pages 44 to 130 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in Note 12.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GOBRRHEMPEENRER

For the year ended 31st March 2015 #HE—-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-IF —T-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the year KEEEFIE (35,027) (153,186)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income REEHME2E (BB) WiE
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently BER S REnfERIB2E 2 TBE ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINNBRARMEREREE
financial statements of overseas ZERETE
subsidiaries (6,790) 8,405
Change in fair value reserve on revaluation ERAHEEREZ
of available-for-sale investments AR ERFEES 190 277
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income AEEEMmE 2T (EHIB) kS
for the year (net of nil tax) (HNBRZFLIE) (6,600) 8,682
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEHZEER (41,627) (144,504)
Attributable to: SHER
Owners of the Company AATEFEEA (37,536) (144,596)
Non-controlling interests FEERBRRERS (4,091) 92
(41,627) (144,504)
The notes on pages 44 to 130 form part of these financial statements. EB44B R F1308 2 WX B I B 15 3k 2 B EE B 1n -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBIRIRE

As at 31st March 2015 RZ=ZZT—HF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RE — P4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MBS RERE 14 15,250 19,225
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 15 19,866 20,366
Investment properties "EYE 16 225,169 185,529
Available-for-sale investments ARHEZRE 18 7,717 7,527
Rental deposits and prepayments MEES RFEMNRIE 21,554 29,433
289,556 262,080
Current assets RENEE
Inventories EN=T 19 372,167 469,341
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 15 505 505
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EAh IR K 20 38,475 64,368
Trading securities BEEEE 21 8,239 3,676
Pledged bank deposits B HIRITFR 22 1,483 3,303
Cash and cash equivalents BehkBEEEYD 22 21,554 36,879
442,423 578,072
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E Al BR R 23 172,011 206,377
Bank loans RITEE 24 62,081 135,449
Loans from a director EE2ER 25 47,000 52,000
Provision for store closure JEf S R 26 - 7,634
Current income tax payable BNERFE B FT 15 /X 3,548 3,548
284,640 405,008
Net current assets REBEEFE 157,783 173,064
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 447,339 435,144
Non-current liabilities kHRBEE
Rental received in advance FEUW A & 1,967 2,042
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 27 6,790 6,736
Other liabilities HmBE 28 27,346 19,886
36,103 28,664
Net assets EEFE 411,236 406,480
Capital and reserves R B
Share capital & A 30 313,373 273,373
Reserves G 97,863 123,306
Equity attributable to owners FEBREAABFEAZER
of the Company 411,236 396,679
Non-controlling interests FEFERR IR R - 9,801
Total equity R 411,236 406,480

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

RECZE-—HAFRAA=ZTHESEZSBBNEENE  TATIEERRES:

Eav Yin Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
B CEE:
Director Director
EZE -
The notes on pages 44 to 130 form part of these financial statements. EF44B B2 F 1308 2 M E BRI B TS 3R 2 BB 5019 ©

Annual Report 2015 |39



+—RIEFE

A=

BE-_Z—AF

BigmE IR

For the year ended 31st March 2015

=)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

962 1 £98'26 (06+'30%) (x4 98L°94 ¥ Ll 186262 880°GH 68682 0Le'ehh ELECIE
(112) 665' 665° = = = = = = = -
(00g's) (00g‘s) = = = = = = = (00g‘s) -
00015 000°kH = S = = = o = 00014 000'0%
- = 6856 - (a8s's) - - - - = -
(902'1) (002"} = = (002"} = = - = = -
(229'9) (9gg'2¢) (9g6'0¢) 06} = = = (062'9) = = -
(009‘9) - (009‘9) = 061 = = = (062'9) = = -
061 061 = 061 = = = = = = -
(06L'9) - (062'9) = = = = = (062') = S =
(220'se) (oes'0¢) (9¢6'¢) = = = o = = o =
08790% 90662} (gev'¥8e) 6867 LUS'1e bes'Ll 186262 8815 68682 019'cE} £L8'8L2
rgs rg 4 rg4 rgs rg4 rg4 rgs rg4 rg4 rg 4 rg4
000.$YH 000.$YH 000:$%H 000:$YH 000$)YH 000:$YH 000.$YH 000:$YH 000:$YH 000:$YH 000:$¥H
BHgy £ 3 L% YEBYY  YEINE  BEYE Y8yvy e YBYE B4 b4
Kynba [e10)-qng $9SS0| EIVELET] EIVERET] snjdins EIVERET] EIVERL] EIVELET] wnjwaid lended
leloL paje|nwnody  anjea Jieq uopdo panquuoy  [enden abueyoxg uonenjerdy  aleys aleys

aleys

BEYRHEOYVEE

fiuedwo?) ay} Jo SiouMO 0} |qeINGUIY

(VRN EB7TEY
RV (A
HEY

GHL A

gEiEEE

EERAIEE X
X
NEpEy R
MEHYHHR

)
l

/ENESHES

EEZ9H9YY
Nwmwmﬁmﬂm

BEYEZ

FELRAK
ETEHEES
(BY) /2gEIHH
HHEy
H-Hush-&=d

GLOC YIBIN IS LE I

(o ®30U) [0Au00
10 8BuBY Jnoyym Areipisgns
e U] Sisalalul diysiaumo uj abuey)
sasuadxe anss| aIeys
uswaoe|d pue uonduosgns
0} juensind panss| saleys
suondo aJeys Jo ainyiapo; uodn
$9SS0| PaJe|NWNITE 0} JajSuel]
sasuadxe
JuswAed paseq-aieys
pafnes-Ainba Jo uopiubooay
1eak 8y} Joj (ss0])
/oWOoOU| BAISUSYBIAWIOD (B0 ]

SjuBLSBAUI
3[es-10}-8|qe|(eAe JO UOljen[es
U0 9AI8Se anjeA Jiey Ul 8buey)
salieIpIsgns
SE8SIBA0 JO SJUBWOYEIS
elouBU JO UORe|SURA
U0 Sa0UBIaYp 9bUBYIXT

(s50])/8LL0UI BN|SUBYBIdW0D J3Y}Q)

Jeak 8y} 1oy $507
102 Hdy 8| 3

HIRAHE

&

i

40| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited



> i
F =%
— Hef H
2D W
nuuﬁa
LUl g
dilk
z Q|
tH
n ,
o
Q) i
zZ b
A o 08v'90% 108’6 906°¢2} (gev't8e) 6867 = LIS teg'Lh 186252 8L8')S 686'60 019°cEl €Le'eLe H—1ZE=
T w E:ATA
O s . . - Bz - - R - - - - - STITE
LL > - R0 24 M-
@) 3 - - - 0609 - (0609) - - - - - - -
— 3 EER A E N
zZ e (LGB ¥ HEUT
LUl o 500} - 500°} = = 500} = = - - - - - ZHEFER
M m 266 - 2667 = = = 96 = o = = - - KRty
NEHEYYY
THJ- iy
_A|n m (p05'p¥H) 26 (968‘7h1) (8Le'ssh) L3 = = = = S0v'8 = = = (49)
/B iﬁ\
[
n 7898 - 7898 = Uz = = = = 5008 = = =
a] e - e = e = = = - - - - - BEYH
LLI BYvZEY
_A|n ZEHHYE
50p°'8 - S0v'8 = = = = = = 5078 = = 5
m FER VY
1 FEREY
O EIEWEE
(59) /2nEs
n (081'egH) 14 (8Le'esH) (8Le'ssH = S = = o - - - - ,E&E
Z L130°'LvS 60 692 (e98'6¢2) 8012 680G 86212 bes'Lh 186252 eLh'ey 68682 049'cE} £L8'eLe H-HE$=—-&"%
O rgd rg vy Zg4 zg vgd Zg4 zg Zg 4 zg rgt Zg4 rg4
§ @i 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.$%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.3%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.8%H 000.8%H
By Rayy £ EEEE YUHYY  YEyy YERaE  EEVE YE v LLLE Y8YE R bl
e s LA
fynbe Sisauel [e30-0ng $9550| EIVERES] EIVERE] EIVERS)] snjdins EIVERE)] EIVERE)] EIVERET] wnjwaid [eydea
[ejoL Buijjosu0a pajeinwnady  8nfea Jieq fynbe sajou  uopdo pajnguuo)  [eyden abueyoxg uonjenersy  8seys aleys
-UoN 8|qIHaAUI0) aleys
BEVRETY

fiuedwion 8y} J0 SIBUMO 0} B|GRINGUIY

710C YOI IS 1€ Y

suoijdo aJeys Jo ainyiayoj uodn
$9SS0| PAYE[NWNIE. O} JAJSUBI]
010U 8| II9AU0D
{0 uondwapas uodn
$9SS0| PAY|NWNIDE 0} JASUBI]
(/2 810U) S810U B|qIHBAUOI JO
ynyew wosj 1paid Xe} paiisjaq
sasuadxe
Juswied paseq-saseys
pafnes-Anba Jo uopiubosay
1eak 8y} Joj (ss0|)
/oWOOU] BAISUSYBIAWIOD (B0 ]

SJUBWISAAU] B[ES-10}
-9|qE|[eA. JO UOIEN[BARI UO

aMIasal an[eA Jiey ul aBuey?
SalIEIpISqNS
Se9SIN0 JO SJUBLIBIEIS
[BIOUBUI JO UOIjE|SUBJ)}

U0 S92UBJaYIp aBueyax3

B¥ (550])/awo0ul aA1SUaYaIdWOd Jay

Jeak 8y} Joj $507
€102 Hdy I8}

Bin o

fva
[=]

A4BEF1B08 2 A UL 15k 2 258

ES

The notes on pages 44 to 130 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRERER

For the year ended 31st March 2015 #HE—-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—UF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
M FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before taxation B B AT ES 1B (34,973) (152,990)
Adjustments for : PR
Valuation gains on investment properties TEYEZ HEKE 16 (40,481) (18,791)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on trading securities BHEEBECAETE (W=) BB 7 (4,563) 169
Write-down of inventories, net FEZHMR - F5E 19 21,722 18,925
Write-back of long outstanding payables BRERHAREEENRIER
and accruals FEETER 7 (2,962) -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 RWRTOREEE 7 2,552 -
Revevsal of other tax payable H fth J& 1+ 75 78 # o) 7 (34,467) -
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e U BR X K FB A FIE 7 13,413 1,145
and prepayments BEEE
Bank interest income RITF B WA 6 (57) (176)
Interest expenses B 9a 7,691 12,470
Depreciation e 14 10,027 27,873
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments GEN-SERN Bt £ 15 506 513
Share-based payments expenses LARRD B R 2 3R X (1,206) 2,952
Loss on write-off of rental deposits WA ERS MIEMNRIEAE
and prepayments Z B8 5,046 4,861
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEMHE - HER (10) -
and equipment Bl
Loss on write-off of property, plant MisH 2 - W28 R R
and equipment 2 [E1E 173 3,094
Decrease in provision for store closure IEEERER D 26 (7,639) (4,601)
Exchange differences EHERE (210) 1,348
Changes in working capital EBEEGE
Decrease in inventories FERD 70,557 85,896
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & H Ath 8 AR FOR > 11,376 20,709
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 & H M BR R
other payables #hn,/ G ) 1,490 (3,623)
Increase in other liabilities Hib B EEnm 7,460 16,870
Decrease in rental received in advance W ER 78 U A8 & R (75) (75)
CASH GENERATED FROM EEREEBECES
OPERATIONS 25,370 21,569
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid ERzHBEERER (21) (603)
PRC Corporate Income Tax refunded EiRE B EMEH 21 824
NET CASH GENERATED BEERREXEKZ
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BHEFEE 25,370 21,790
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Payment for purchase of property, SRR EWE  MBERZE
plant and equipment (6,781) (7,008)
Sale proceeds of disposal of property, HEME KB RRE
plant and equipment Z P tHE A 10 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits B LIRRITERUR L (1 0) 1,820 (1,081)
Bank interest income received B U R 1T A B U A 57 176
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING CARREER 2RSS FEE
ACTIVITIES (4,894) (7,863)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREMERER

For the year ended 31st March 2015 #HZ—%

—HAF=A=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—E-HE —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & E
Net proceeds from issuance BATH RIS F 588
of new shares 49,700 -
Proceeds from new bank loans MIRTTIBEMSRIA 61,204 112,706
Repayment of bank loans BEETEE (134,587) (201,487)
Interest paid on bank loans RITEEIHZFE (5,006) (9,123)
Interest paid on convertible notes TMREBEIAZFE 29 - (692)
Payment for acquisition of additional AT EE — IR A R RSN
interests in a subsidiary B 2 40 (2,111) -
Repayment of convertible notes EENBERRE 29 - (33,229)
Proceeds from loans from a director WREEZERFEHRE 25 13,000 62,000
Repayment of loans from a director BEEEEZER 25 (18,000) (24,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING EARMETE 2
ACTIVITIES HEFEE (35,800) (93,825)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
CASH EQUIVALENTS W B (15,324) (79,898)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE F4 iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 36,879 116,760
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXGBH o8 FH
CHANGES, NET (1) 17
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRESTLHELSEEY
END OF THE YEAR 21,554 36,879
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRBESESEYERD N
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITTERAEFHEES 22 21,554 36,879
The notes on pages 44 to 130 form part of these financial statements. FA4E T E1308 2 T B I FS R R 2 BRE I

SRR
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading and retailing of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and
19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong respectively.
As at 31st March 2015, the directors of the Company consider
the immediate and ultimate holding company is Century Hero
International Limited (“Century Hero”), a company which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling
party of Century Hero is Mr. Eav Yin, the director of the Company.
Century Hero does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30th June 2015.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$30,936,000 (2014: HK$153,278,000) and had decrease in
net current assets of HK$15,281,000 (2014: HK$119,479,000) and
net debt of HK$86,044,000 (2014: HK$147,267,000) as stated in
note to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March
2015. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the
impact of the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to attain profit and positive cash flows
from operations in the immediate and longer term.

On 29th February 2012, the Group was granted a long-
term loan of HK$130,000,000 by a bank which is repayable
by quarterly installment by February 2016. As of 31st March
2015, the remaining outstanding balances of the bank loan was
HK$37,100,000. Pursuant to the loan facility agreement, an event
of default would arise if the Group cannot meet the financial
covenants as set out in the loan facility agreement. As at 31st
March 2014, the Group was unable to comply with certain of
these financial covenants. The directors of the Company had
negotiated with the bank and obtained a waiver for the breach of
the financial covenants. On 10th June 2015, the Group entered
into an amendment agreement with the bank, certain clauses of
original loan facility agreement in respect of financial covenants
were revised with effect from 1st September 2014. As at 31st
March 2015, the Group was able to meet all the revised financial
covenants under the amendment agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOING CONCERN (Continued)

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the Group has taken the following measures:

. In June 2013, the Group entered into a term loan facility
agreement for HK$150 million with Mr. Eav Yin, a director
and controlling shareholder of the Company for a period from
27th June 2013 to 30th September 2014. The Group renewed
the term loan facility agreement with Mr. Eav on 25th June
2014 for another year to 30th September 2015. The total
amount utilized under the term loan facility agreement as at
31st March 2015 were HK$47,000,000. The Group renewed
the term loan facility agreement with Mr. Eav on 26th June
2015 for another year to 30th September 2016 with facility
amount of HK$80 million.

. the directors of the Company have been negotiating with a
bank for obtaining new banking facilities for the Group;

. the directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations; and

o the directors of the Company have reviewed the performance
of individual stores and plan to close non-profitable stores if
appropriate.

Based on the cash flow projections of the Group and having taken
into account the available financial resources of the Group and
the above measures, the directors have concluded that the Group
is able to continue as a going concern and to meet their financial
liabilities as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 4 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 3(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or
as trading securities (see note 3(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 38.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interest
in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposed group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement
period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, or
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

50| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

3.

FE2 85k (£8)
(d) IS (8)

WEARBEEXBAHTEENNERES

ARBLHEMELENEEXBE - BIHAK
BREEWBHYO A LEFE  TBER

EBAThEERNTORE - FATEHRE
HEHGHFNARBARNEED S EPH
B UAEAERE GENHBBEEE
stE MR (U B s AR | —F) Ff
ERHBERKERRFENEENREARN
EEMAI M FE -

WEXARERIABNREZSH NTEITE
HIR BRI - RIERB ST REIEASR T
HRRENADEBME - HFESEHNHIA
REERERSAPITSENTE  MEAR
BREGAERT AR BEREEXEE
MRAREBEEREREAMIRRELEGS
HERE3FR[EMIA : RN E|HEE
S EAEITH [ B AARBERRARE
EI(RAEERME) ENAE - HHEER
FEIRERHER -

WMREBAFHENBEETH  AIEZEE
HH(AIAEEESENRZEZA)OALE
ENETEAKE LA AERWEL P ARE
m o BEBRNER (WFE) BT AB& o BRI
BB HAT - AR E b 2 R R RE SR DR
WREBINERMELENSHE  EEHHA
=Rs ML ERED  EROBRERER
BEFBE -

HRMEMREREBEOHERBE S HNT
FARMARTK - BIAREEAERSE SRR
MIBEMEESRE ZFLUEFRARE
B (R LX) A% - HARRBEINEESR
BE - ARBRATERSA R KE B #BFER
EZEMRANFER (E) BZAEERE
BOEE -

jit o P S SR B A R 4N )



3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 3(s).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 3(i)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 3(i)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 3(s). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
Note 3(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Ui

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 3(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 3(s).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
Note 3(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in Note 3(h).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

3(0):

- buildings;

- other items of property, plant and equipment.

If an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plans and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives.

Construction-in-progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction and pending installation and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of leasehold improvements and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
to use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see Note 3(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Company or Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in Note 3(i). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

U]

(iii)

(i

Leased assets (Continued)

Operating lease charges

The Group leases retail stores and office facilities.
Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum rentals
or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of
stated amounts and normally require the Group to
pay insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent
expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis
over the base term of the lease. Any difference between
the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Contingent
rental payments are expensed as incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease and is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position, is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 3(f)).

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESHBE(E8)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) &EiEE(E)
() Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities () EBERRLESREREMENKFES

1B ()

and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is MEAEEMELE  RESEEERE
determined and recognised as follows: 2T

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESHBE(E8)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) &EiEE(E)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i)  E#EEHRE

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments;

- rental deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

1)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Note 3(i)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note

3(1).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 3(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a components of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognized as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in
the convertible notes equity reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes equity reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(g) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. For the purposes of measuring
deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Current and deferred tax
are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of
financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged. had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 3(r)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ji)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

64| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

3. FESFECR (8)

(r) SREMBFIER - BE0XNRaRE

()

(i)

BT 198 T I R

MR ZRETA BERA) B
EREXEA(HEAD BREEBA
RERBEHTAZ GRRIHEN
RMRZZEBE - MAFE AN
EREZEH

EAKEBELMBER  ZERZOA
BEIRSER  BRIFZDAEERE
EaH) ZNERRENE S R EMERRA
NZREWA - BB LT BERODA
EEREHE N 2REAURBENAF
EER S BRERKEME R (]
BEZEEARN) MEE  H2RBEEF
BT - TOERAE AR R
ZER T BB UWE M R E R
HERZBERTERA BRI
AR B & (10325 B R e A) St i
51 o fim AR B 1T 7% 2 R B AR Sk R LR
RE ZREREBERNZEEEZ
AREBBER T THER o I EE 2 U
HE T UEUZ KB - AU N RER TR
EEWAR - BN B s ATERR R SE

RERRBEIERAN 2 BIRKEIRE
REMNBREANBHE DT LM BER
WA o BN - () RSB AR A BER
BEERAEBIER - R (i) & B R RR
BREABBERINENES MEM
FERAzEReE(ARVERNSHE

RS - RIS () (i) FERR A R
B -
HEEN A B E

fim AN 52 8] 2l AN A Bl ZE 54 2 8 AR =R (R K
EERIEETEM EAMEHRS G
EERBR G2 ERING - RATEY
AR AEBRADTE G H
ZEHABENEZHMBARE
o WERRMESAK - AREAS
Mz REFHREE -

8 2 A 488 Bz o BRSO 2 AT RE 1
R - AN AR BB E L T SR
i BRIKZEARBERNAEE B
BOR SN RT AR AR AR AR A o AR
EEZEFARFERTLASTARAKSE
HERBRETERESDFLE  TE
BERIBAB BERINTAIEME
BRAKE RIRR SN -

jit o P S SR B A R 4N )



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(iii)  Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follow:

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods and related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deducting of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits, will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

U]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(v) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

(v)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board
of directors of the Company for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of an
investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to
measure its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in its
consolidated and separate financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment
entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based
on the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1st April 2014), the
application of the amendments has had no impact on the
disclosures or amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the
requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and
‘simultaneous realization and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group
does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that
qualify for offset, the application of the amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill or other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related CGU.
Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional disclosure
requirements applicable to when the recoverable amount of an
asset or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal.
These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in line with
the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the first
time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39 provide
relief from the requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when
a derivative designated as a hedging instrument is novated under
certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any
change to the fair value of the derivative designated as a hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included in the
assessment and measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to novation,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on the
disclosures or amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies for the first time in
the current year. HK(IFRIC) 21 addresses the issue as to when
to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government.
The interpretation defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating
event that gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the
payment of the levy, as identified by legislation. The interpretation
provides guidance on how different levy arrangements should
be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial statements
preparation implies that an entity has a present obligation to pay a
levy that will be triggered by operating in a future period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21 has been applied retrospectively. The application of
this Interpretation has had no material impact on the disclosures
or amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the Company has early adopted the amendments
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock Exchange
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial statements
is on the presentation and disclosure of certain information in
the financial statements which include the presentation of the
Company’s statement of financial position as a note disclosure
instead of a primary statement.

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are trading and retailing of
watches and property leasing.

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches and property leasing and is
summarised as follows:
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2015 2014
—E-EF —ZE-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of watches EHREHE 713,854 962,264
Gross rental income from investment properties R EREWE 2 HEEWRA 4,726 5,089
718,580 967,353

OTHER REVENUE H{thlly 5
2015 2014
—2-1% L
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Bank interest income RITH B U A 57 176

Total interest income on financial assets not FEREREANEREENS R

at fair value through profit or loss BEMELENNERALSE 57 176
Show window rental income RR 51185 5 A W A - 857
Gross rental income from sub-letting of a shop D —F/E A S WA AT 623 757
Promotion income HEWA 8,854 8,541
Advertising income EEIRA 2,310 3,233
Customer services income and others BRRERAREA 13,118 17,015
24,962 30,579
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

OTHER NET (GAIN)/LOSS 7. Hfth (WEs) BB E
2015 2014
—E-FHEF —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B FET F&EL
Unrealised (gain)/loss on trading BHEBIARAER
securities (Wz8) /B8 (4,563) 169
Written off of property, plant and equipment Yzt - HeEs R s - 41
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME - HER
equipment B (10) -
Store closure costs JEH S ER AR (i) 8,363 7,998
Provision for store closure (Note 26) JE s BB (W it 26) - 6,599
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S RWERFRERE 2,552 -
Impairment loss on other receivables L th & W BR X % TE A 5K I8 (i)
and prepayments BEE B 13,413 1,145
Write-back of long outstanding RAEIAREEENER
payables and accruals NEFEREE (2,962) -
Gain on early move out of a store 12 A8 5 R s (iif) - (4,728)
Reversal of other tax payable H A E S B TE R B (iv) (34,467) -
Others Eth (620) (169)
(18,294) 11,055
Notes: Wi
(i)  Store closure costs () EFEEERAE

(i)

(iif)

The store closure costs for the year ended 31st March 2015
comprised compensations paid to landlords of HK$2,888,000, other
expenses for store closure of HK$256,000, losses on write off of
leasehold improvements and equipment of HK$173,000 and write off
of rental deposits of HK$5,046,000 for early termination of operating
leases.

The store closure costs for the year ended 31st March 2014
comprised a loss on write off of leasehold improvements and
equipment of HK$3,053,000, other expenses for store closure of
HK$84,000 and write off of rental deposits of HK$4,861,000 for early
termination of operating leases.

Impairment loss on other receivables and prepayments

The impairment loss on other receivables and prepayments mainly
represented the payments for purchases made to a supplier became
irrecoverable and the carrying amount of the rental prepayment
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Gain on early move out of a store

During the year ended 31st March 2014, a supplier of the Group took
over the operation of a store in the PRC. In return for the early move
out of the store by the Group, the supplier paid a compensation of
HK$4,728,000 to the Group upon handover of the store.
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7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER NET (GAIN)/LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(iv)  Reversal of other tax payable

In 2015, the directors of the Company are of the view that the value-
added tax payable of approximately RMB27,549,000 (approximately
HK$34,467,000) provided in the previous years is no longer payable
and the said sum is written back in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 31st March 2015. In considering
the outstanding value-added tax payable to be no longer payable,
the directors of the Company have taken into account the facts and
circumstances, among others, that the approval from the Shanghai
Huangpu State Tax Bureau for the tax deregistration of the relevant
subsidiary and the expiry of the relevant subsidiary’s business
registration with the Shanghai Administration for Industry and
Commerce.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sale of watches and (ji)
properties leasing. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note to the
financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit
earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of central
administration costs such as those finance costs and corporate
costs which cannot be meaningfully allocated to individual
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortization of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and other corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. LB (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets LXT?%@EE AREBREDE 7 &I - ¥
and liabilities by operating segment. CEERBEZOW
2015
“E-If
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total  Unallocated Total
HEERHE HENE APEE AELE @it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FAT FAT FET
External revenue (Note) oMk E (F7i2) 713,854 4,726 718,580 - 718,580
Operating profit/(loss) EER/ (B1B) (82,463) 3,864 (78,599) (7,515) (86,114)
Valuation gains on investment BEME 7 EK
properties - 40,481 40,481 - 40,481
Interest income FIEWA 56 - 56 1 57
Other net gain His 58 13,444 79 13,523 4,71 18,294
Finance costs BB (7,691) - (7,691) - (7,691)
Segment results SHLE (76,654) 44,424 (32,230) (2,743) (34,973)
Income tax FriEH (54)
Loss for the year AEEBR (35,027)
Loss on write off of property, plant %1% MERZERBEEE
and equipment 173 - 173 - 173
Loss on write off of rental deposits & &E &M EERE 5,046 - 5,046 - 5,046
Write-down of inventories MREE 21,722 - 21,722 - 21,722
Write-back of long-outstanding REREERNERK
payables and accruals it ERER (2,684) (79) (2,763) (199) (2,962)
Impairment loss of trade receivables & 5 EWE R AEEE 2,552 - 2,552 L 2,552
Impairment loss of other receivables /i U EEF
and prepayments BRRERESE 13,413 - 13,413 - 13,413
Reversal of other tax payable L e B IR (34,467) - (34,467) - (34,467)
Unrealised gain on trading securites #HEE 2 AEBRUE - - - (4,563) (4,563)
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH 10,336 197 10,533 - 10,533
Segment assets PHEE 479,304 227,754 707,058 17,204 724,262
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZEE 7,717
Total assets BEE 731,979
Additions to non-current segment AREBREERE DI
assets during the reporting period BEZEM 7,299 230 7,529 33 7,562
Segment liabilities SHaE 298,960 7,872 306,832 3,573 310,405
Current income tax payable BV EA pE 4 PR 1S 7 3,548
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEEE 6,790
Total liabilities LzaE 320,743
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March i RBE-Z—RF=A=+—B8 | FEHEIE

2015.
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Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. 4YEBIBE (&)
2014
—2-mF
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
BHREE HEME D BE REHH @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FHET FET FHET
External revenue (Note) oM (H7 ) 962,264 5,089 967,353 - 967,353
Operating profit/(loss) mEEH/ (B1R) (142,813) 4,204 (138,609) (4,823) (143,432)
Valuation gains on investment REMEZ HEKR
properties - 13,791 13,791 - 13,791
Interest income IS ON 166 - 166 10 176
Other net loss HEEEE (11,836) - (11,836) 781 (11,055)
Finance costs BB A (10,786) - (10,786) (1,684) (12,470)
Segment results NEEE (165,269) 17,995 (147,274) (5,716) (152,990)
Income tax M (196)
Loss for the year AEERE (153,186)
Provision for store closure EREERE 6,599 - 6,599 - 6,599
Loss on write off of property, plant ~ ¥)% - #E KR EREEE
and equipment 3,094 - 3,094 - 3,094
Loss on write off of rental deposits R &E &M HER 4,861 - 4,861 - 4,861
Write-down of inventories WRFE 18,925 - 18,925 - 18,925
Impairment loss of other receivables {1 fE Ut Bk 7
and prepayments BRTERESE 1,145 - 1,145 3 1,145
Unrealised loss on trading securiies BHEE 2 AZHERE - - - 169 169
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH 28,222 164 28,386 - 28,386
Segment assets AHEE 623,216 191,416 814,632 17,993 832,625
Available-for-sale investments AfRHEZRE 7,527
Total assets BEE 840,152
Additions to non-current segment AREHRERDHE
assets during the reporting period BEZEM 16,983 - 16,983 - 16,983
Segment liabilities SHEaE 412,028 8,030 420,058 3,330 423,388
Current income tax payable ENEAFE PSR 3,548
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEER 6,736
Total liabilities BERE 433,672
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Wiz R E—_E—WFE=-A=+—HIFEHEHTE

2014.

DEBEIHE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. HNEPRS (&)
(a) Geographic information (a) HEHERER
The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the AT AR EE R INDE P 2 Was (i) A
Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s @M KERHZE HEERMNKIE -
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, REWENHAERSRBENRIE - TPEE
investment properties and rental deposits and prepayments. ME2ZEERERBIEDEX R - &
The geographical location of customers is referred to the g2 ETRDEEREREAEZ BRI
location at which the services were provided or the goods EZE ©

delivered. The geographical locations of non-current assets
are based on the physical location of the assets.

Revenues from

external customers Non-current assets
REMBEF 2 W= IRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-HFE —"ZTNF ZB-HF "—FTHOF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET FHET TET
The People’s Republic of FEARKEFE -

China, excluding Hong Kong BERBRIN 343,113 461,122 59,129 65,957
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (REH) 374,488 502,909 208,912 170,266
Switzerland i 979 1,872 13,798 18,330
Others Hth - 1,450 - -

718,580 967,353 281,839 254,553
(b) Information about major customers (b) BAREBEFEH
For the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014, no revenue REEF - ZE—NNEK_—_FTE—RHF=A=+—
derived from transactions with a single customer represented HILEE #XSPFEZREEEE —&
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. PlhEBAILZE10% A F o
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SRR B EE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. MfRaiksE

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREAIEEE R, (GFA) A TEIE -

5 {44 B

(a) Finance costs (a) Bl FERY AR
2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIE T B 4,903 8,355
Interest on convertible notes R EETE - 1,684
Interest on loans from a director BEE2ERAE 2,788 2,431
Total interest expenses on financial FBEBBRIBANERENT R
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENTEX LB
profit or loss 7,691 12,470
Staff costs (b) BIRK
2015 2014
—E-hfF —F-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHEMET
(including directors’ fee and emoluments) (BIEEEBE REE) 55,157 73,962
Equity-settled share-based 1 AR i 45 B LARR D A AL T
payment expenses I REAX (1,206) 2,952
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RORAE A ET I K 709 803
54,660 77,717
Other items (c) EHfthiaB
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment KREMERKHESNEERZSZ N
properties less direct outgoings 252,000/ 7T (ZF — 4 -
of HK$252,000 (2014: HK$161,000) 161,0005% 7t) (4,474) (4,928)
Net exchange loss/(gain) EREE (W) F8E 1,057 (1,444)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 6l Bl &
Audit services Z RS 1,566 1,654
Other services HoAth B 75 371 354
Depreciation for property, plant and W WBERBETE
equipment 10,027 27,873
Amortisation for prepaid lease payments FHE TR I 506 513
Impairment loss on trade receivables B rRWERFURERE 2,552 -
Impairment loss on other receivables B YR X R TR RIB
and prepayments HEEE 13,413 1,145
Operating lease rentals in respect of BEMEZKEHERS
rented premises
— Minimum rentals —&EAe 135,619 204,449
- Contingent rentals — s ARHEE 1,813 2,593
137,432 207,042
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR X 217 &M A 570,552 754,386
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

U]

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of each director for the years ended 31st
March 2015 and 2014 is set out below:

(i) ZEEME

10. ESHERRSHEAL

RBEZE_Z-—NEFR_T-—RF=A=+—
RLEEESuEEZMESRIIIT :

2015
—®-if

Employer’s
contribution

78| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

Allowances to retirement Equity-settled
Directors’ Basic and other benefit share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
RRELEE
BER BUEA NRARER
EzHe EfxFe AEA HEETHX At PAES @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEn TEn FET FEn FE7 FEr
Executive Directors y17E3
Eav Yin BE 238 4175 1,053 - 5,466 234 5,700
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson LE 238 2,009 647 17 3,001 176 3177
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier
(resigned on 31st July 2014) (M=E-mF
tA=T-REf) - 495 - 5 500 (2,493) (1,993)
476 6,769 1,700 22 8,967 (2,083) 6,884
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - 238 29 267
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TEF 238 - - - 238 2 267
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - 238 29 267
14 - - - 714 87 801
1,190 6,769 1,700 22 9,681 (1,996) 7,685
T o e S A L 2



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (i) EESBM (&)
2014
“E-mF
Employer's
contribution
Allowances  to retirement Equity-settled
Directors’ Basic and other benefit share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
ERELE
2R RIVET IR AER
20k EXEE EET AEEEHER N PANE | @
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FAT FET TAT AT
Executive Directors y17E3
Eav Yin B 238 4,175 1,157 - 5,570 403 5973
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson L 238 2,099 752 15 3,104 302 3,406
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier - 2,982 3 16 3,001 1,370 4,37
476 9,256 1,912 31 11,675 2,075 18,750
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Lai Si Ming BER 238 - - - 238 50 288
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TER 238 - - - 238 50 288
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEH 238 - - - 238 50 288
714 - - - 714 150 864
1,190 9,256 1,912 31 12,389 2,225 14,614

Notes: Hist -

(1)  There was no arrangement under which a director waived or (1) RZE-—NmNFER-ZF-—RAF=A=+—HL
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st FEHE - WREEREIREREEAM
March 2015 and 2014, 2R

(2) No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as (2 REBEE_Z-—NFE_ZE-RAF=A=+-—
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as At &E  AEEVESINTFESIEAR
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March SIEMAIRMARER % - SAERBERRE
2015 and 2014. Bz -

(3) As at 31st March 2015, the directors held share options under B RZZE—ARAF=ZA=+—H8 BZRELQA
company’s share option scheme. The details of the share BIREST BT EERE - BRIEFERES
options are disclosed under the paragraph “share option iR (BB 518 | B MM EE31 () i
scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 31(a). =

(4)  The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role (4) ARAVWEBZETHEHLTHAZNAES
and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the LB E AT ESET
executive directors.
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. SETMEREESHMEEAT (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(ii) Individuals with highest emoluments (i) E=MEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hfuGEeHALTH ML (ZZE—-—WE: =
(2014: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed fi7) BE 2B &AM FE106) 5% 5 - Ea =1L
in Note 10(j). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of EAEEE (T —NF M) ATFRZ
the other three (2014: two) senior management is as follows: e @zEm T :
2015 2014
—E—-4f —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and other EARHS R REMBEF
benefits 3,921 3,190
Performance related incentive payments KA WEIA 3 131
Employer’s contribution to retirement R RAE 5 EE 4R
benefit scheme 46 30
Equity-settled share-based payment expense RIREGEE RGN BER 2 3K 116 194
4,086 3,545
The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: two senior BTN EREEE (S —UE MUy
management) senior management with the highest BEEE)SZSHATZHMENF THEEE :
emoluments are within the following bands:
Number of individuals
A"
2015 2014
—E-RF —EF-mF
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/& 7T - 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,8 T — 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t - 2,500,000/%5 7T - 1
3 2
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Bt 5 ER 2R Bf 51
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11. B EERNZRETH
OR LOSS
2015 2014
—E—FE —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Current tax BVHAR 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax Bl EFTIS
— Charge for the year —RNEEMRBH 21 530
- Tax refund —FTEBRRK (21) (824)
- Under-provision in respect —“NEFERETRE
of prior years - 490
- 196
Deferred tax IRFE TR
Origination of temporary differences ERMZECEFRED 54 -
54 196

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong for
the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.

Taxation for PRC subsidiaries is provided at the appropriate
current rate of 25% (2014: 25%).

The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax
at the rate of 17% (2014: 17%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland for the
years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.

FEMBARMNEBNEHER165%(=F—0
F:16.5%) - HRARERBE-_T—MOER—
T-RF=ZA=T-HUEZFEEFAWBEREK
W EBBGAERBOGEH - AL W BB N EBHR
fEH B

FEMBERRZHBANEE 2BRITHER25% (=
T —E : 25%) FHEHE o

Rimt 2B ARREFEHER17T% (ZZE—M
F:17%) REBEZE_ZT—MER-_F-—AF=
A=1+—RBILEE BRASENEK+ 2 F W[
HEERBUE R - BUL B I RGN R
WK PR -
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11.
OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at
applicable tax rates:

GEeBRREAZPRSH (4)

BIARAX e BRIZERAREAE 2 HIk

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before taxation b B A &5 1B (34,973) (152,990)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, RAEERMEBESENER
calculated at the tax rates applicable to MESTHEORBIAIEE
losses in the countries concerned Z I8 (6,528) (33,347)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERFEETEIR S H 2 RBEE 15,488 18,317
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBEEATRMIBMAZRB R E (22,488) (10,843)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERZMIBER MG E 14,560 28,762
Tax effect of temporary REERLERER
difference not recognised LB E (58) 141
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences B 1E & # & 1 7] H157 & A%
previously not recognised ERIOBMGHE (742) (1,366)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses FRARSERACHBEEZBBTE (157) (1,134)
Tax refund FTiSfiiR K (21) (824)
Under-provision in prior years NEFERETR - 490
Actual tax expenses ERBEES S 54 196

There was no income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the years ended 31st March 2015 and
2014.

12. DIVIDENDS 12.

The directors do not propose any payment of final dividend for the
years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$30,936,000
(2014: HK$153,278,000) and the weighted average number of
1,462,757,000 ordinary shares (2014: 1,366,866,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

13. BREEA

(a)

BREBKRGEA

BREABEDEAQNBFEEARGEIE
30,936,000 7T (—Z— 04 : 153,278,000
BIT) AR FE AN T 21,462,757,000
BREBBRNEFEFHH(ZFT —NF
1,366,866,000% L@ ) st E AT -

2015 2014

—E-IF —T-F

’000 ‘000

Fhig Fhg

Issued ordinary shares at 1st April RUA—BET2E@ER 1,366,866 1,366,866
Effect of issue on shares pursuant to R A% 0 R & 217 B (D

share placement o -%- 95,891 -

Weighted average number of ordinary R=EA=+—BE@ERK
shares at 31st March IHEF AR 2 1,462,757 1,366,866

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share for
the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.

The share option had no dilutive effect because the average
market price of ordinary shares did not exceed the exercise
price of the share option for the years ended 31st March
2015 and 2014.

The outstanding convertible notes during the year ended
31st March 2014 had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss
per share.

(b)

BRERBEE

REBEE-_T-—HER_T-—RAF=A=+—
ALEFEESRKEEIBERASNERELE

B

BREYESSTE  BARLTARZYY
MSERTEBBEE T —NFA-T—H
FZA=T-HIEFEZBRETEE -

RBE-ZT-—NF=A=+—"HILFERAK
TE I BRREBENEREAERA REE

=y 45
rE°
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. A% - 1RSSR R

Furniture, Leasehold  Machinery
Land and fixtures and improve- and Motor
buildings fittings ments  equipment vehicles Total
BE-RE  HENE BER
THRER REE 3] B "E ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET T FEx FET T
At Tst April 2013 W-E-=fmA-A
Cost KAE 10,352 3,406 94,199 27,469 2,885 138,311
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (2,639) (8,112 (66,051) (21,647) (2,632) (96,081)
Carrying amount EEFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 42,230
Year ended 31st March 2014 “E-MEZR=T-BILERE
Opening carrying amount HNEEFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 42,230
Translation differences BEEH 332 - 382 240 - 954
Additions NE - 40 5,876 1,092 - 7,008
Write off il - o) (3,059) (39) - (3,094)
Depreciation charge REXH (281) (207) (24,417) ,771) (197) (27,873)
Closing carrying amount HREEFE 7,764 125 6,936 4,344 56 19,225
At 31st March 2014 RZE-NE=A=1-H
Cost KAE 10,806 3,446 64,652 27,627 2,885 109,416
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (3,042) (3,321) (57,716) (23,283) (2,829) (90,191)
Carrying amount REFE 7,764 125 6,936 4,344 56 19,225
Year ended 31st March 2015 “Z-REZR=1-BILERE
Opening carrying amount HIEEEE 7,764 125 6,936 4344 56 19,225
Translation differences BEET (386) - 11 (181) - (556)
Additions NE - 55 6,134 592 - 6,781
Write-off it - (16) (39) (118) - (173)
Depreciation charge REXH (277) (57) (7,187) (2,450) (56) (10,027)
Closing carrying amount HREEFE 7,101 107 5,855 2,187 - 15,250
At 31st March 2015 RZE-AF=A=1-H
Cost KAE 10,261 3,265 46,960 23,338 2,578 86,402
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (3,160) (3,158) (41,105) (21,151) (2,578) (71,152)
Carrying amount BEFE 7,101 107 5,855 2,187 - 15,250
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:
Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated
Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms
of the leases, if shorter
2 - 4% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter
15-20%
5 -50% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

Machinery and equipment 20 - 50%
Motor vehicles 20%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Leasehold improvements

(b) At 31st March 2015, land and buildings of HK$642,000
(2014: HK$733,000) were pledged as securities for bank
loans as detailed in Note 35.

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

14. W% - BBRRE (68)
Wit

(@) MHE - BRLREUERERTIFERFE
wE:

KAEHT W RAER TR T RTE

HELH 2%k R A B T F HA
(AREH B%E)

BgF 2 - A%SIETAB T
FH (U EE AE)

RE REREE 15-20%

THEWmERE 5-50%3 L ALAHBT
FH(UAREE BE)

128 R B% A% 20 - 50%

RE 20%

b) R-—ZE—HE=A=+—1 642,000 T

Z X RiEF (ZZF—HF : 733,000 7T)
EEARITERZIEIF - FI5HAH 35 -

15. & fIRIAE

2015 2014
—ZE—-FHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April RMUA—H 20,871 21,379
Translation difference MEERE 6 5
Amortisation G (506) (513)
At 31st March R=RA=+—H 20,371 20,871
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Analysis for reporting purposes as: HERIBEENZ
Current portion mEE 505 505
Non-current portion SERBEB 19,866 20,366
20,371 20,871
At 31st March 2015, certain prepaid lease payments of RZZE—RF=-A=+—H8 FFEE519, 000‘}%
HK$519,000 (2014: HK$524,000) were pledged as securities for JT (: E¢ 524,000/ 7T) B EFE T K
bank loans as detailed in Note 35. ESRITEER - FFIEE NS5 ©
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S ERRBAE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREME
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At valuation HESME
At 1st April ®nMWA—AH 185,529 170,983
Translation difference MEERE (841) 755
Fair value gains N EKE 40,481 13,791
At 31st March R=A=+—H 225,169 185,529
The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured AEERBEURNEOMEERDEKABALE
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as RXETE - WA RAIBEMEALR -
investment properties.
Note: Miat -
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (a) BREMENAREHESE
() Fair value hierarchy (i) D EER
The following table presents the fair value of the T§£§|JZISEIEA11 MERZEE
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of ﬁﬁufiﬂﬁixé“%%@ﬁf o FEM
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised ;% HACE B ERE ‘J>>%135}T*
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined "’TTEqu%Jﬁfr?QEE’J BArERE
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level o REEZ2RUTHETEAMRAL
into which a fair value measurement is classified BABEBMAEBREEMEEZE - #imE
is determined with reference to the observability EARENEHEMETBOER
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:
e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only o FMEHEE:AAENFERFER
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in F—HREIE - RFEAREMN
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at FREENEBERERMHZ ALK
the measurement date. AEWE -
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using e FoHRME: A ARENEFEHS
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which THREE A EBREIE R E
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant BE - RUEKREHAEKRTA
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BRZ8E - TR BRZEER
inputs for which market data are not available. EmSEBEYTERB 2 8IE -
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using e BZHRMEE:AnEFECAE
significant unobservable inputs. ATAERZ8UIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

16. IR&ME (1§)

(a)

BREMENARAETE (])

() DREERGE)

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2015 categorised into
R-ZE-HEFE=A=+—H=

ARREFHEDE
Fair value
at
31st March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-B—HF
=A=+-—H
ZRRE F1ER F2EBR ER) =R
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEMEARE
measurement =
Investment properties: & ¥ :
- Hong Kong —&BB 178,900 - - 178,900
- Mainland China — R B K BE 37,846 - - 37,846
- Switzerland —Imt 8,423 - - 8,423
225,169 - - 225,169
Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2014 categorised into
R-E—ME=A=+—HZ
AREFEDE
Fair value
at
31st March
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=-Z—mNO EF
=RA=1t-
ZAR ﬁ F1BR H2BR HIBR
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BREEARE
measurement FTE
Investment properties: REYE :
- Hong Kong —B% 140,600 - - 140,600
- Mainland China — F B KB 34,141 - - 34,141
- Switzerland —IRL 10,788 - - 10,788
185,529 - - 185,529
A SRR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2015. The valuations of investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC were
carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a
firm of independent professional qualified valuers in
Hong Kong and the PRC with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being valued.
The valuations of investment properties located in
Switzerland were carried out by Pierre Berest S.A.,
a firm of independent professional qualified valuers
in Switzerland with recent experience in the location
and category of properties being valued. The Group’s
finance manager and the chief financial officer
have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.
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16. IR&ME (1§)

(a)

BREMENARAETE (])

()

AAEER(E)

REBEE_ZT-—NFEFR_ZT—HF=A
=t+—RLtFE GEEHEZEHRZ
I M BRI A R B - IEER
“%@iA% BHzaFE=ERE

c AEBEHBMEREARBERER M
ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%%%%%%%ﬁ%%
& o

AEBEMBEREMEER =T —H
Fo—A=F+—BETEMR - MLREER
FEEEMENHEIEAEE K
By BENGABMLERM DTZEEZR
TBERARET  ZAERMTARTE
Y EFTE B AR R B R T HH#
HIEER - MR TR EYERNGEIE
Bint =B BENEGEBMLERD
Pierre Berest S.AETT * FZRBIERITTIA
S ENE B FERIFER
THEENKS AEBECHMBEEEAR
ﬁ?fﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁa/\/E\JEEﬂiﬁmﬁﬂqﬂﬁﬁ&i
[EE BETHER KRR



16.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FEZERIAgETEEH
Relationship of
Range or unobservable
Valuation Key weighted inputs to
techniques unobservable inputs average fair value
BN DMREFT
fRERM TEFABREZEE gL BEyEBRR
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (14)%-12% The higher
located in the PRC approach to transaction price (2014: (19)%-5%) the adjusted
NRFEZEENE 5 L BUA (to reflect location (ZZ—4% : transaction price,
age and maintenance) (19)%-5% ) the higher the
wE (E) X5 ER fair value
(AR 2 - 1R RRE) HEERDRS
ARERS
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (7)%-25% The higher
located in Hong Kong approach to transaction price (2014: (27)%-28%) the adjusted
MRNBEBZBREME 5B (to reflect location (ZZ—WM4% : transaction price,
age and maintenance) (27)%-28% ) the higher the
BE (PR RBER fair value
(AR B2, - 1B H RARE) HEEEDS
DRERS
Investment properties Income capitalization Capitization rate (derived 5.79% The higher the
located in Switzerland approach from monthly market rent)  (2014: 6.88%) capitalization rate,
it 2 REDME WAEB AL E B X (B8 A% (ZE—m%F: the lower the
HEePTE) 6.88%) fair value
BERERDS
NRAEBIE
Market monthly rent rate SFr10 The higher
mEFAEE X (2014: SFr10) the monthly
per square metre market rent rate,
FEHK the higher the
10 fair value
T A BB B AMS
(ZZT—m%E HeETs -
103 A BF) ARETD
The fair value of investment properties located in NRFBEREBEZRENEZRAALE
Hong Kong and the PRC is determined using market DERAMBHEEETE  HE2E 0]
comparison approach by reference to recent sales HEEYERETFHFREFFKERE
price of comparable properties on a price per square ERENEZRBERE AERAER
feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium or discount VIEEE 2 FT 5 E R TE (BT B8
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties EXGLEMB)ELAR - MWEE
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for ERERENTSRS  HEBGEM
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value BzRARENRS °
measurement.
The fair value of investment properties located in MR TR EMEN DL EREB UK
Switzerland is determined using income capitalization ABRCE2BYEmMB A HHEEN
approach by reference to the market rentals of all S HEEER WG EfEeE N
lettable units of the properties are assessed by ERHNHESEET - FIERAMNE N
reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units. bb 3R Th 22 BB 4K A i (B BD R B 5 1 48 (L
The capitalization rate adopted is made by reference MEZIWFER > WIBBGEMSEEY
to the yield rate observed by the valuer for the similar BRAMERZO MM ETAE -
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.
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(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)
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16. BREME (&)
(a) BREMENAREHE (E)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.

The changes in fair value of investment properties
amounting to HK$40,481,000 (2014: gain of
HK$13,791,000) are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.

Translation difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income in “exchange reserve”

(b) The Group’s investment properties outside Hong Kong with
carrying amount of HK$5,358,000 (2014: HK$4,820,000) are
registered under the name of other persons in trust for the
Group.

(c) At 31st March 2015, certain investment properties of

HK$175,900,000 (2014: HK$137,900,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 35.
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16. IR&ME (1§)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BREMENARAETE (])

(i)

ENES

BEZERAAETEEN (E)

FFEFEANGEEILABRIELSEE
E °
& & Y 2D 5 B © ¥840,481,0000% 7T

== 13,791,000/ T i)
SHRGE BERNER -

ERXEZRNEMEE K ED[E L

BURBBANDREKE S ®

5,358,000/% jT (= & — U 4 : 4,820,000/
T ZREMEDAETAREERAZHE
AR TERL -

n =

T-HEF-ZAZ+-8 BE

175,900,000 7T (—Z—PI4F : 137,900,000
BIL)NETREMERERITEZIKR -
I AT FESS ©

jit o P S SR B A R 4N )



17.

2\

E

SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March

2015:

Place of
incorporation or
establishment
or registration/

Paid up
issued ordinary
share capital/

Mt 23]

R §5 ER R B 5F

ATRINVN-ZZ-—RAF=A=+—HETEWER

AR

Proportion of
issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRR L BEHERTER AQAMBERITRE/ .
WEARAE BEHE BE/IRER AMERZED TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# A&
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
KBRS 10,0007 7 100% - RERK
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
Kt 1,875,000%7 )% 5 marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% REREREHEERERK
BEAEH(L8)ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Watch trading
BRRA of China*
hEE A RSB 128,403,300 A K = 100% EHRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
BRERA(BE)BRAF B 3,000,0008% - 100% BHRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FR)BRAA B 5,000,0008% - 100% REERREREL S
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares = 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
Ve ERKE (HR)BRAR BB 3,500,100/ - 100% mEERRERES
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
KBRS/ EB 1% 100% - NEFERRE
AGEEEERKRBEERAR The People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
REAR AN 1,000,000 A & # - 100% BHRES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Company Limited (Note) watch trading
BREEEBRAR (Hi7) EE 20,000,0008% - 100% nRERREERES
Accord Watch SA Switzerland SFr.100,000 - 100% Watch trading
It 100,000% 1% 5B EHRE S
Wakmann Watch SA Switzerland SFr.100,000 = 100% Watch trading
Wt 100,000 £ )% B BHRES
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * REPEAREMBEZAEIMAEEZEINELE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEREARAMBAZTMARADE -

domestic enterprise.

Note: As at 31st March 2014, the Group holds 50% of the issued and
paid-up capital of Wakmann Watch (International) Company Limited
(“Wakmann”). Under the supplementary agreement dated 31st March
2012, the Group controls the composition of the board of directors of
Wakmann. Therefore, the Group controls Wakmann and classified it

as subsidiary.

On 31st March 2015, the Group acquired additional 50% of the
equity interest in Wakmann at a consideration of approximately
HK$2,099,000 and Wakmann became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company as at 31st March 2015.

RIS Y

Mt R-E-NF=RA=+—H AEEHEARES
BERERAA ([ER£])50%E #1T AR K
K- RE-_FT-—"F=A=+—B2HIEHH "
FEEZHRTEEER MK - Hit - A&H
BHlReeRGEERMBAT -

RZTE—HAE=A=+—8 r&£EKERZES
TIN50 % e fh fEw - 1B 49/32,099,000/8 7T
PHRRER—_E—RAF=A=+t—HBXAELA
AM—HE2ENB AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. OjHIBEZIRS
2015 2014
—E-I1F —T-lF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Investments in BER
Club debentures, net (Note) &S - F8E (ML) 6,767 6,577
Unlisted equity securities in BB I TR
Hong Kong FH 950 950
7,717 7,527
Note: VR
The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of the club EEFEAABERE - WEBEFZARNEBNZR-F
debentures has been determined by reference to the bid price quoted in mELZEEMET HE-_ZE—RF=A=+—H1
the second hand market. The increase in carrying amount of HK$190,000 FEE - R EIRE(EE{E190,000/8 T (=T — P4 -
for the year ended 31st March 2015 (2014: HK$277,000) was due to the 277,000 7T) - TR AESHEZ AREEM -
increase in their fair values.
19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2015 2014
—B-IfF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Watches 3 &
Raw materials JR#4 % 44,021 61,478
Work in progress F B 659 735
Finished goods SRR 327,487 407,128
372,167 469,341
At 31st March 2015, certain inventories of HK$120,901,000 (2014: R=%—RF=/="F—H" 12090100087
HK$147,190,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as Efﬁ%(;g—lﬂi 1]\47,199,009\7%75)ET§T$
detailed in Note 35. ERIRITEFRMER - FHEH K35 ©
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAAAXZFESBELIAGEBERNDT
expense and included in consolidated statement of profit or loss is e
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-IfF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEZREE 548,830 735,461
Write-down of inventories 7 & HUR 24,370 21,746
Reversal of write-down of inventories 8 & 2 17 & MUR # Bl
due to sales (2,648) (2,821)
570,552 754,386
92| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited ik o i SR AR E A FR A H



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ER 2R Bf 51
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BSRH fih EUYE
2015 2014
—E2-AfF —ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 e AR
— Third parties —%5=% 14,564 21,105
- Related parties —FENA 4,213 2,332
18,777 23,437
Allowance for doubtful debts REEEAE (2,552) -
16,225 23,437
Other receivables H fth fE W AR K
- Third parties =55 = 1,159 3,746
- Related parties —BER A 3,914 2,750
5,073 6,496
Loans and receivables B R EWEE R 21,298 29,933
Deposits and prepayments Re kBN HE 17,177 34,435
38,475 64,368
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables RZE—NFRZTE-RAF=-A=+T—HAXEHE
at 31st March 2015 and 2014 approximate their fair values. ZESREMBYERRZREEEQLEES -
All of the trade receivables and other receivables are expected to B2 5 REURR &AM EWGRIBTEE AT R — 4
be recovered within one year. A [El o
(a) Aging Analysis (a) BRESHR
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its AEBETHEEHANAE180H 2EEH -
customers. The aging analysis of trade receivables of RBERAR  BEFZAM2EFHEUERER
HK$16,225,000 (2014: HK$23,437,000) at the end of the 16,225,000/% 7T (= % — MU 4F : 23,437,000
reporting period based on invoice date and net of allowance BIL) CERR T RRRBEFHEAT :
of doubtful debts is as follows:
2015 2014
—2-AfF —ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 FE W AR 3K
Up to 90 days BEAZE90R 11,678 17,853
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 415 1,361
181 to 365 days 181%=365H 1,515 3,181
Over 365 days 365H M £ 2,617 1,042
16,225 23,437
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. S5 RHIhEUBESR (68)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) SBAMEULORFRIFAE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are ERAESRBEEFRMERBEERAEER
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is ek BRIEASBEHNND EEESE 2] 88
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which MAREAERR - ERBRT BEBEE
case the impairment loss is written off against trade HEMIEE S BKEER -

receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FRAREZREEZES (BEERN KL EEE
year, including both specific and collective loss components JBERMD) 20 TSR -
is as follows:
2015 2014
—E2-I1F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April REA—H - -
Impairment loss recognised TR 2B EE K 2,552 -
At 31st March R=A=+—H 2,552 -
At 31st March 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of RZE—RAF=ZA=1+—1H AEBENESH
HK$2,552,000 were individually determined to be impaired. JE Uk BR 5£2,552,0007% 7T @ Bl Rk E R E - &
The individually impaired receivables related to customers FHR BN #S EREKEFRRERREZ
that were in financial difficulties and specific allowances TR B 52,552,00008 0 (— = — U4 : B
for doubtful debts of HK$2,552,000 (2014: HK$ Nil) were Tor) BB R ©

recognised consequently.

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) ERAZESMURR
The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither RIBFHR - SEERNSEBEEEREZ
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired, based BIHRWIRARERDITIT -

on due date, are as follows:

2015 2014

—B-IfF —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired NI 4 780 HA SO (B 11,636 18,605
Less than 90 days past due i1 HE > 7290 H 457 1,364
91 to 180 days past due #1HA91%180H 1,515 2,061
Over 180 days past due #1180 H M £ 2,617 1,407
4,589 4,832

16,225 283,437
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R §5 ER R B 5F

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. SR HEthEUKRR (£8)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued) (c) EFEZSIAMUER (48)
Trade receivables are generally due within 90 days from the —REE S EWRARHIRE HHEI0E NE
date of billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor H o AR E s B S RURREIET
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there BREWETARREHRIEPA -
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate mEEREsERKEFREZRBIRF
to a number of independent customers that have a good Bl ZERPEAEEB ZEERHELT -
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BEBRTF&ER  BEERA ZSEHHEA
management believes that no impairment allowance is EHRERE  NENEEEXTESERE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been B BESRDERIET2HE - REBEW
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are BN EERTAEAERR -
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
21. TRADING SECURITIES 21. BHRE
2015 2014
—E-FRF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value ITHEFZARE
- in Hong Kong — &% 8,239 3,676
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing MBS ZAAEUNLRNRERREUT ZEAE
bid price at the end of the reporting period. BER -
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22, RERRELEN
2015 2014
—E-afF —ZT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand BRITEREFERS 23,037 40,182
Less: pledged bank deposits R BEEBRITER
(Note 35) (H17#35) (1,483) (3,303)
Cash and cash equivalents in RERE B BRI R &
the consolidated statement of meEReREXRIT
financial position and the HReRREEEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 21,554 36,879
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S ERRBAE

22,

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 2. BERBR2%EMN (&)
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and RZE—RAF=ZA=1+—AAXKETHEAH
in hand of HK$8,856,000 (equivalent to RMB7,075,000) held in the Z2HeRRSEEYRFERITLAFERS A
PRC as at 31st March 2015 (2014: HK$17,083,000 (equivalent to 8,856,000/% 7T (1857 7,075,000C AR ) (=F
RMB13,680,000)). The conversion of RMB denominated balance — VI 4 : 17,083,000/% 7T (1655 5213,680,0007T A
into foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign- R¥)) - \RETBEBRERZINERZZING
currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are AEMRITERERRFRENM ZER - 5 F
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange R AT BRI INE S EBIEH R AEBEIRE -
control promulgated by the PRC government.
During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market rates which FR -RETZHESEMEN RSB EN
range from 0.001% to 0.35% (2014: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum. TR FE0.001%=0.35% 2 (ZZF — U F :
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no 0.001%%0.35%) ° RITAERTT NN T I 38
recent history of default. R4 sk FBBERRT -
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. SERHEIMbEEDR
2015 2014
—E-IF —T-lF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 ETIRFX
- Third parties —%=5 36,171 36,235
- Related party —FE QA 2,589 1,606
38,760 37,841
Other payables and accrued charges HithENRARESER 41,435 46,729
Accrued interest to a director HF—RBREZFZRAHE 5,220 2,431
Financial liabilities measured NEERAFTEZEREE
at amortised cost 85,415 87,001
Rental received in advance TE Y & 75 75
Deposits received B Wiz & 4,031 5,245
Other tax payable Hth e Hi1E 82,490 114,056
172,011 206,377

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables at
31st March 2015 and 2014 approximate their fair values.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables of the Group are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ER 2R Bf 51
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 23. ESRH fhEMED (&)
The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of RB|ERAR - REBERIERZ AR EMNE SR
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KR O T -
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Trade payables Z 5 ERTIR
Up to 90 days BEAZE90R 32,508 29,535
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 1,085 2,328
181 to 365 days 181%=365H 502 1,697
Over 365 days 365H A £ 4,665 4,281
38,760 37,841
24. BANK LOANS 24, RiTIES
2015 2014
—E—-4f —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Bank loans WITIEE
- secured — B 37,100 74,260
- unsecured — IR 24,981 61,189
62,081 135,449
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans are as follows: RTERZEESBEO>TAT :
2015 2014
—E-4fF —T—-mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current liabilities mENB &
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —F AR HEE 2 2D
within one year RITER - 29,970
Portion of bank loans due for repayment within ~ —FRE|HEE I HRTZER
one year which contains a repayment on H 83512 Z SO IR
demand clause 62,081 68,379
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FIRIEEER 2 H M5 R
after one year which contains a repayment ERHEBERER
on demand clause (note i) B RE(HT ati) - 37,100
62,081 135,449
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

24,

BANK LOANS (Continued)

At 31st March 2015, the bank loans were due for repayment as
follows:

2015 2014
—E-AF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&ET
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FRIPEREZ
within one year RITE D 62,081 98,349
Bank loans due for repayment —FRIBEECRITER
after one year (note ii): (K1 azii) -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFRA - 37,100
62,081 135,449

Notes:

(i) None of the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as
a current liability is expected to be settled within one year.

(i) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as
stipulated in the respective loan agreements.

As disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, the Group
was unable to comply with certain financial covenants as at
31st March 2014. As such, the corresponding bank loans of
HK$74,260,000 was classified as bank loans due for repayment
within one year as at 31st March 2014. On 10th June 2015, the
Group entered into an amendment agreement with the bank and
certain original financial covenants were revised with effect from
1st September 2014. As at 31st March 2015, the corresponding
outstanding bank loans were amounted to HK$37,100,000 and the
Group was able to meet all the revised financial covenants under
the amendment agreement.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans are ranged from 5.00%
to 6.16% (2014: 3.32% to 6.60%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2015 and 2014, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in note 35, (ii)
corporate guarantees given by the Company (iii) assignment
of dividends payable by WEEEM (LF) BSHER AR and
shareholder’s loans of W& &M (L&) BSEMR A advanced
or to be advanced by Time City (Hong Kong) Limited and (iv)
assignment of rental income from certain investment properties.
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26.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
25. LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR 25 BETEH
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ET—UFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REA) 52,000 14,000
Addition during the year F XM 13,000 62,000
Repayment made during the year FREHEE (18,000) (24,000)
At end of the year REKE 47,000 52,000
The loans are unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong dollar ZEFWEEIT - UEE DBELRIT(DELR
prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking TMEZBTHEBFEMEE1 % ERIZE
Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and repayable KIEE -
on demand.
PROVISION FOR STORE CLOSURE 26. IEEESERE
2015 2014
—E-4fF —T—-mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH] 7,634 12,224
Provisions made during the year FAEL B - 6,599
Store closure expenses paid EEMEE A (7,639) (11,200)
Exchange difference EH ZERE 5 11
At end of the year REFE - 7,634

The provision for store closure was made in connection with the
close of various retail stores including the compensation to be
paid to landlords and onerous lease contracts.

REEERTANZEEHEEIINTEER
FEMEEAHZHEMFLAERERXEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. IBETRHIBE A
(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (a) PRAZEEZERBEGE

HEAMNHBRAXTERBELEHIER
BZAERE D REZEHMT

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position and the movements during the

reporting period are as follows:

Equity
Revaluation component
of investment  of convertible
properties notes Total
Eff THEREE
RENZE BB aE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET FET TET
Deferred tax arising from: BRESREERS :
At 1st April 2013 WZE-=%KA—H 6,736 1,005 7,141
Credited to equity AR - (1,005) (1,005)
At 31st March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+—H 6,736 - 6,736
At 1st April 2014 RZZE-EEMA-A 6,736 - 6,736
Credited to consolidated income AGARER
statement 54 - 54
At 31st March 2015 RZZ-RE=A=1—H 6,790 - 6,790
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERAZIEEHIEESE

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$558,030,000 (2014: HK$500,738,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.
Tax losses of approximately HK$70,813,000 (2014:
HK$66,884,000) attributable to the continuing operations
in the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits
that may be carried forward for five years for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax purpose. Tax losses of approximately
HK$25,204,000 (2014: HK$9,315,000) attributable to the
continuing operations in Switzerland are available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
for seven years for Switzerland Profits Tax purposes.
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27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) Withholdings tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. At 31st March 2015, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$15,371,000 (2014: HK$28,013,000). Deferred tax
liabilities in respect of these temporary differences have not
been recognised, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC for the period from 1st
January 2008 to 31st March 2014 will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The amounts represented the non-current portion of accrued
rental expenses.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 31st August 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the placing
agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to subscribe
for convertible notes issued by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000 on a “best-efforts”
basis.

On 27th September 2010, the Company completed the placing
of HK$100,800,000 convertible notes to independent placees,
with the price of HK$98,784,000, after deducting transaction cost
of 2% over the principal amount of the convertible notes. The
convertible notes carry interest at 3% per annum and the principal
amounts of all convertible notes shall be due and repayable on the
third anniversary of the date of issue.

28.

29.

R §5 ER R B 5F

. IBERIBGE (£8)

(c) TFaibis
REE _ZTNF-A-HEERNPED
EFREBE AN ELEREETIRRE
B H) BB % 10% B B =%

ZENF-A—HEEK - WhBEENEDE
&ﬁ%%%ﬂ%%ﬁZﬁiﬁﬁ%ggﬁﬂ
AT RBEBIR MR - RZFTNFZ
HAZ+=H8 - EBEEE RS 77©2008)1

B REE-ZTEELFE T _A=T—HAMNRK
Bt M 2k M BE AP B S 2 B B AR R B R

PR EREROET I EREEN -
RZZ—HAF=A=1+—H BENBAA
R K s ) B I 2= R AR FE 415,371,000%8
gL (ZZ —P04F : 28,013,000/ 7T) ° FHAA
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ERRERE BREBREEREBEEKRERE

HIBREIEE  BAOARARBR; LSS
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= -

RZZE—ZFNAZ++tH ARAIRHKRATHR

BMEZEAS S FE2%% » 1498,784,000/5 7T 2 &

B+ TABLE 4 $£100,800,0007 7T 2 AT 2 % 2= 4%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

29.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The convertible notes entitle their holders to convert their
outstanding principal amounts into new conversion shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.84 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, the conversion price of the
convertible notes was adjusted from HK$0.84 per conversion
share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share as a result of the share
subdivision. The above adjustment took effect from the close of
business of Monday, 15th November 2010.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible notes,
the conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted from
HK$0.168 per conversion share to HK$1.68 per consolidated
share as a result of the share consolidation. The above adjustment
took effect from 8th January 2013. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, the conversion price of the
convertible notes was adjusted from HK$1.68 per conversion
share to HK$0.573 per share as a result of the rights issue.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible notes
is set out as below:

29. OliERRRIE (48)

BREEETFTEBEAUVAERE (TAH
@hﬁ&%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁz¢uiﬁiﬁ7
HRRGO (RTREFHEMT) - RBETRRE
B2 RIGER - BRRDIFA - BRATBRE
BrERERTIERKRG0.84B LHEEZFTIF
HRZ1H0.1688 I o FlAEH -_T—ZTF+—A
THAEHP - ZALERFABER -

*E?FTW%?%?FZ%?X&M# B &3 40k

BREAKRGOEH BT —EHRKHKH0.168E T
BEeFAHKM1.688TL LlAER T —
F—ANBRBEM - BIFETRBEER ZAEK K
- AR EBROBRRERHER A5 —EiR)
D1.68B TRABEZFRMKH0.5738 T ©

it
x;%\\\ B ‘+

ABMERRaERD 2 EBHEIIMT

HK$’000

FET

At 1st April 2013 R-ZZE—=F1A—H 32,237

Interest expenses B 5 1,684

Payment of interest expenses SR ENSNE (692)

Redemption i B (33,229)
At 31st March 2014 pi

Interest expense on the convertible notes was calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective rate of
11.92% per annum on the liability component of the convertible
notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BB7k
2015 2014
—E-FE —E-mEF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.2 each Amount HK$0.2 each Amount
BREME BREE
0.2} 8T 2 0.2 T2
ZEREE 2 TERHEB &8
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
Fhg FET Fhg FrET
Authorised: EERA
At the beginning and at the end 3R HiF 1A K& 8K
of the reporting period 2,500,000 500,000 2,500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At the beginning of the REE RS
reporting period 1,366,866 273,373 1,366,866 273,373
Issue of new shares pursuant to 1R &A% 17 fic & 317 F7 A%
share placement (Note) =) 200,000 40,000 - -
At the end of the reporting R & BR
period 1,566,866 313,373 1,366,866 273,373
Note: W

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 24th September 2014, the
Company issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.255 per
share for cash consideration on 8th October 2014 towards the capital base

of the Company.

RZTE—EF+ANR  ARARBE-_ZT—HFHA
—+mAZESRE - RS R(ESR.2558 LT
200,000,0000% & i iR LA 58 AN A &) & AN BB o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS 31. IRilgElH{E gkl
(@) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (a) WBARIESHE
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company RZEBEZ_FALAZ+H  AARIMKREHE
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the HamEREFS (ST FERE
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Z]) o  —EE - FHEREIE Y BNIEE
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to EBRAEBRARNABERRNGT R EG RS Y
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its MEBEARATLRERD 2BE T2 =
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders FHERETENEGERERABOAAT R
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option AT BB A Bl S T B B A R U (E Rl (E B
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related SEMEERARZER RIEA - KRS
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company BB sk (ii) A A A &) AT {A] Y /B X &) s AT ]
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or BB A AR EM SRS 2 T ERE - 1
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company b A S A (1) PN A= R EIN N AN Y
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any customer of EABB R R 2 EREF ¢ 8(iv)A QRS E
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any I B AR EREE AR ZEBBRKE
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any BERY-
affiliate.
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () BHEZEREEEDT
Period during
Category of  No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
RERAL REH Date of grant conditions AT share options
28 EREZA REAH BB BRENER SRTHEE BREZSHH
Directors 27,750,000 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$0.394 10 years
S (equivalent to —E-—f of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 0.3948 7T T4
8,139,075 share ZA=+-8 HRHASER—F(20%) ZZ--F=A=THZE (HK$1.344
options after the “Z--F=F=1H after the adjustments

effects of share
consolidation and

rights issue) BROAHERF (20%) (IR E B RAL R
(ARG E B 3 years from the date LR B1.34475 )
Ry 8% HE of grant (20%)
78,139,075 MR AR =5 (20%)
BRE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B it B EEmE (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
ERHBHERF (20%)
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31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31. RigwmEENM (48)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(Continued)

(a) IEARIESH SN (48)

R §5 ER R B 5F

iy WHZERREFEAT @ (&)

Period during
Category of  No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
RERAL REH Date of grant conditions AT share options
2P E BREHE Rt B BERHS BRENER BROTHKE BREZSNH
Employees 119,050,000 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$0.394 10 years
BT (equivalent to —E-—f at grant (20%) 30th March 2021 0.39475 7T T4
34,917,365 ZR=+-HB mEHASRE—F(20%) —ZT--F=A=+H (HK$1.344
share options ZZZ—F=RA=1H afterthe adjustments
after the effects of 2 years from the date of share consolidation
share consolidation of grant (20%) and rights issue)
and rights issue) B A BERF (20%) (R R &4 R A AR
(RRHE B R 3 years from the date R B1.3448T)
HERF 2% HE of grant (20%)
134,917,365 M AR =F (20%)
BRE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B B ERmE (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B ERRRE(20%)
Director 34,170,000 26th October 2011 1 year from the date 25th October 2012 to  HK$0.263 10 years
B (equivalent to —2——f at grant (20%) 25th October 2021 0.2637% 1 T4
10,022,061 +A=+x8 AEHASE—F(20%) —T--FF+A-+HAH (HK$0.897
share options E-F--F after the adjustments
after the effects of 2 years from the date +A=-t+%H of share consolidation

share consolidation
and rights issue)
(R E 6 &
HRYE%  HE
10,022,061
ERE)

of grant (20%)
MR B HRREF (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mE T ABE=F(20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR B HEmE (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
hf it AR RE (20%)

and rights issue)
(RBA G RER
HEER8ITET)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

31.

(a)

(b)

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(i)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

31. RigwmEENM ()

(a)

Bz iEst 8 (5F)

(i) EBAEZBE R NEFHTEENT

2015 2014
—E—EHF —T—-MmF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEFY BREHE T BREHRE
TEE 1T1EE
HK$ HK$
E T BT
Outstanding at the EY) AT
beginning of the year 1.212 34,072,661 1.284 42,871,661
Forfeited during the year F AL 0.990 (12,661,761) 1.344 (8,799,000)
Outstanding at the RNER B ARITHE
end of the year 1.344 21,410,900 1.212 34,072,661
Exercisable at the REEAITEE
end of the year 1.344 17,128,720 1.246 18,439,184
The options outstanding at 31st March 2015 had NZE—RE=ZA=+—08 " BHKR1TE
exercise prices of HK$1.344 (2014: HK$1.344 R ZTEE1.83448 0 (ZF— 1
or HK$0.897) and a weighted average remaining 1,344 73%0.897 8 T ) R nfEFE
contractual lives of 6 years (2014: 7.17 years). BRBENERE (ZE—ME : 717
) o
Share Award Plan 2010 (b) BRREEENEHEI (B —BF)

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 2010”).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014 and as at 31st
March 2015 and 2014, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 R R BT 5
32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 32. RSB IRE N ERE B EE)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AAFFEAMRE
2015 2014
—2-1% —T-mEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB AR ZHEZR 302,719 248,759
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A 8 Y AR 3 149 149
Cash and cash equivalents BekBSEEY 8,063 17,154
8,212 17,303
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A B /BB 2 B) 508 13,379 13,392
Other payables H A & 5 BR 3K 3,155 2,830
16,534 16,222
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) EEFE (8,322) 1,081
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABARS 294,397 249,840
Net assets EEEE 294,397 249,840
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital & A< 30 313,373 273,373
Reserves ki 32(b) (18,976) (23,533)
Total equity attributable FEREQAFAFEEFA
to owners of the Company Z R 294,397 249,840

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2015 and signed on its behalf by:
RITE-—HFEANAZTHEEESRBIRENE YATIEERERESE

Eav Yin
Bz
Director

BE

Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
=L L
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 32. KASIMFRIRNERGEIBEE (48)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) ARATFERE
The change in the reserves of the Company during the years REE-E-—NMEER-_T—FAF=A=+—
ended 31st March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: Atz FEHEARRFEEZSOT -

Share Convertible

Share option  notes equity  Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
BRE  TEREE
B EE i BRAGE BB ES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T Tz Tz FET
At 1st April 2013 RZE-=FWA—A 133,610 21,238 5,085 17,524 (164,935) 12,522
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (40,012) (40,012)
Other comprehensive income  Ef12ENE - - - - - -
Total comprehensive AE2AEEAE
loss for the year - - - - (40,012) (40,012)
Transaction with owners BREAIRS
Deferred tax credit RERTARZEEZ
upon redemption of BERHELE
convertible notes - - 1,005 - - 1,005
Recognition of equity- BREEREEINRD
settled share based AERIFANRAT
payment expenses - 2,952 - - - 2,952
Transfer to accumulated RERTAREER
losses upon redemption EA\RER
of convertible notes - - (6,090) - 6,090 -
Transfer to accumulated N e ERG
losses upon forfeiture E)\ZHER
of share options - (2,613) - - 2,613 -
At 31st March 2014 RZE-NE
“A=+-8 133,610 21577 - 17,524 (196,244) (23,533)
At 1st April 2014 RZE-MFMA—A 133,610 21,577 - 17,524 (196,244) (23,533)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (3,937) (3,937)
Other comprehensive income  Ef12 AN - - - - - -
Total comprehensive FEREERER
loss for the year - - = - (3,937) (3,937)
Transaction with owners BREAZIRS
Shares issued pursuant to RERENEE
subscription and placement ki 11,000 - - - - 11,000
Share issue expenses EIROER (1,300) - - - - (1,300)
Recognition of equity- BAREREE
settled share-based ARG BER
payment expenses IRMEE - (1,206) - - - (1,206)
Transfer to accumulated RERER N
losses upon forfeiture BAZHEE
of share options - (3,585) - - 3,585 -
At 31st March 2015 RZZ-1%
“A=1+-H 143,310 16,786 - 17,524 (196,596) (18,976)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in Note 3(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 3(t).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve relates to share options granted to
employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 31.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents accumulated gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those investments are disposed of
or are determined to be impaired.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity component
(conversion rights) of the convertible notes issued during the year
ended 31st March 2011 (Note 29).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2014: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from cash at banks and trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with
licensed financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Group monitors the exposure to each single
financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are set out in Note 20.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in note 39, the Group and the
Company do not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 39.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

33. MFEREIR (F)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBEERE ()
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual TREASEFLEREERREN
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the KZBTAHRNERE (BEERSHER
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on LB HFRAE 2 F B 0FE) - RIS
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest R MEFAERTBRENE) R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SEAREFEXN & FHBFE :
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment TER  RESAKRRITEERNSITE
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s ZIRBERERBGERZEHERMS
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow DITERENE 88 0] # 2 KA 5 (B
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be ME ARSI E 2 TG B E
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their EER) 2EFHEZRESRE - Hib
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate RITEEZIHA DN HRIEETEE
effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings HEHRER -
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
2015
—E-AHfF
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount ERRITR ZR—F@8 R—FR&
REE REeRBLE DPRWME HRER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M EMRR 85,415 85,415 - 85,415
Bank loans RITEE 62,081 62,081 - 62,081
Loans from a director EEZER 47,000 47,000 - 47,000
194,496 194,496 - 194,496
2014
—T-mF
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BRRFR SH—EE R—FRN
FHE ReR=ELE8 NG IR E K
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables 85 REMERNER 87,001 87,001 - 87,001
Bank loans RITEE 135,449 135,769 - 135,769
Loans from a director EEER 52,000 52,000 - 52,000
274,450 274,770 - 274,770
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ifi)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

R §5 ER R B 5F

33. MFEREIR (F)

(a) MHEREE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The table that follows summarises the maturity TEREBIMELRENER HZEEKRE
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand KEERAZERERBECRITE
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set HEBEST “ZEBERBEEHAAY
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include FEFEZFEMNK - ERIAEEH
interest payments computed using contractual rates. NN R EERABITT
Taking into account of the Group’s financial position, RATGEITEE RSB RANEE -
the directors of the Company do not consider it RABEZEE ZERTEFHER
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to BERMZMEzETERBEERZE -
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment date set out
in the loan agreements.
Maturity Analysis - Term Loans subject to a EHAN - REECHEHEBEERERE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled RZEHER
repayments
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted
less than less than cash
Within 2 years 5 years outflows Carrying
1 year BR—F SRME ERRIE amount
R—ER BORME BIREE RERELE BEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2015 R-ZZE-h%F=A=1—H 63,514 - - 63,514 62,081
31st March 2014 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 69,613 37,933 - 107,546 105,479
Foreign currency risk (ifi)  SME JE 5

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant.

EREREECHMTAEMBABZE
BZUBEEE NI ZEETIE -

AEB 2 EWRRMARE -
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk

(a)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate short term bank loan (Note 24)
and loans from a director (Note 25).

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed.
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.

@i

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the

reporting period:

33. MIHEREIR ()
I REREER (8)

(iv) FEm&

AEBEmYBBERRITER (WM
24) MEBB 2 REESRER KR —F
ERER(M25) 2 Ak -

AR 7 BUR R E IR E N R R R DA
ROZHE BAN R B8 2 [ & KA
KAREIBTE - A5 B I B A A B E A
XeRABAAEN ARE AR
B EERITESR T AP EER -

i)  FEBR

TRAMAEEZ EERARRS
HIR 2 B A BN

2015 2014
“Z-IF —Z-mE
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
BERA= BB %
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FET FET
Variable rate borrowings: MEBARER
Bank loans BITEE 5.00-6.16 62,081 3.32-6.6 135,449
Loans from a director EEZER Hong Kong dollar 47,000 Hong Kong dollar 52,000
prime rate quoted prime rate quoted
by HSBC plus by HSBC plus
1% per annum 1% per annum
EERTET ELRTET
BREEAE REERNE
MEFE1% MEFE1%
109,081 187,449
Total borrowings BEX
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(iv)

(i)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rate, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the Group’s loss before
taxation for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$1,090,000. Other components
of consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

At 31st March 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rate with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss before
taxation for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$1,874,000. Other components
of consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
has been prepared on the same basis.
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33. MFEREIR (F)
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(iv) FIF @z (&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as
bank loans, loans from a director and convertible notes less
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Total equity comprises all components of equity. The Group
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:

33. MFEREIR (F)

(b)

BhERER

AEEEREAZBEREREENZER
BRI AEERELE  FRRIERREAR
HRERERFETHAEAZDR - FBEE
BeMARESERARHE R  EEE
EHERERE - BERI - NEEBUER
RAEBENMEEZERN  BBXNERE - BT
MR RETHESIELRERBE - AT
HERBERERE -

AEEABEL R (RSFARRABEA
) EREDER - EFFRERIRTT
B3 BEEERRAUBRERRCEART
TR MBAEEBRESEVNES VRN
RFFR - BERBEMARERD - XEE
EERFEERENEERBLLERKF -
MABEMRESLRMT

2015 2014

—2-1% —T -l

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Bank loans (Note 24) IRITIEE (M :724) 62,081 135,449
Loans from a director (Note 25) EE B (Hi225) 47,000 52,000
109,081 187,449

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) 1 : BR& KBS EEW (Kit22) (21,554) (36,879)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 22) BEARITFR (A 222) (1,483) (3,303)

Net debt B FER 86,044 147,267
Total equity BrEmEE 411,236 406,480
Gearing ratio BEL = 20.9% 36.2%

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

At 31st March 2015, if the quoted market prices of the
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss before
taxation would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$1,648,000 (2014: HK$735,000) as a result of changes in
fair value of investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of (d) HERRHEBERKRAZDZAREHSE
financial position

Fair value hierarchy DA ERE

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TREBIWAEEBSRMIEZARE %5

financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting AERNSRERRRETEREESSE WD EA

period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three- EBMEREEDE13 - AAEFERR
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value EZ=(ABH I ARERE - BAREE

measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement DEZBHETIZE LT HEREMBR A

is classified is determined with reference to the observability B ERUENEEEMETE

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level e HF—RHE:  AREFERFERAE—
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets HEHE DR EAREMAREES
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement BENERMBSZAECHAERE -
date.

e  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level o FoMHE: ARBEHEEREAH
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet & BAEBRSEREEINE—H &
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. WREBERTABE 28R - 7]
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data BRHEBEAETBSEEBETTERZ
are not available. g o

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o EFE-MEE: ARBEFEFRERT
significant unobservable inputs. AIER R 7 HUE -

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager AREBHBRERVELBEEE Y BKE LR

performing valuations for the financial instruments, including TAETHE  BEAIHEEREARERRE

available-for-sale investments and trading securities which 5 HERARBEERSBE AE—RREZ
are categorised into Level 2 and Level 1 of the fair value T ZEFEERNERVBEMNEZEZES
hierarchy, respectively. The team reports directly to the H®E - BFENFHNFERSEH  ZEX

chief financial officer and the audit committee. A valuation CSHRBEBANBERHHMNGERS - I

report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is HEFUEEETERMNILE - ARV KE

prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting MEZZESHHENBENSERTFHET
date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial MR ET iR BB E R — -

officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with

the chief financial officer and the audit committee is held

twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

2015 2014
—E-%f ZT-ME
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable inactive ~ observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERBTE EXTER EXFUEE REETS EBEATEE EXTIHEE
ZHE BARE WARE B BALR BAEE
(%-8) (E=R) (Z=R) am (B-H) (E=R) (8=84) 8E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAx FEx FET FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value ZEMAAE
measurements iE
Assets i1
Available-for-sale AfRHEL
investments RE - 6,767 - 6,767 - 6,577 - 6,577
Trading securities E5EE 8,239 - - 8,239 3,676 - - 3,676
Total ek 8,239 6,767 - 15,006 3,676 6,577 - 10,253
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and bank and other borrowings are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31st March 2015 and
2014 because of the immediate or short term maturity of
these financial instruments.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial
instruments.
i) Trading securities
Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an
active market at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.
ii)  Available-for-sale investments
Fair value is determined by reference to the bid

price quoted in the second hand market without any
deduction for transaction costs.
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34.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its
related parties:
(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and

34. EABMEALIRS

FA-AEEEREEEALTEUNTZRS

(a)

TRERASHHM

AEETZEBRABRTH  BEXNTAR
AEERETHRSHAL (MME10MEE)

certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is ZEREWT
as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Short-term employee benefits %R BB A 13,709 15,683
Post-employment benefits RIK1ERE T 70 61
Share-based payment expenses LARR A7 B B 7 2 153K (1,880) 2,419
11,899 18,163

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note

e amme st ATE ITAA] (R HEE9(b))

o

9(b)).
(b) Financing arrangements (b) RIFEEHE
2015 2014
—E—FRF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loans from a director BEZER 47,000 52,000
Accrued interest (Note) 2B (K i) 5,220 2,431
52,220 54,431
Details of the new loans and loans repaid during the year are FREZEERLFTERFEBENGAUBRER
disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. M 5E25H 1 55 o
Note: The amount is included in “trade and other payables” to the Kiet - ZRBERRBEGAYBRAERNIE S E
consolidated statement of financial position. b EARTBR R ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. SAEMEATRE (@)

(c) Other transactions (c) HihxXS
2015 2014
—E—1F —ZE-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Sales of watch movements to HEFHREET
a related company ultimately BLEAEZEFREERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B EESz
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —HEER A 1,223 1,869
Purchase of watch movements from MG CEEZFREMS
a related company ultimately RAGIZ R EEH
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 2 —RERAR
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin BREE F SR - 359
Provision of subsidised advertising REESEH R
and marketing support to 5B &
two related companies ultimately FTHLCEEEZTFHRERER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Ris R EEH
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Z MEBERR (i) 1,161 3,158
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HERAERBEET
three related companies ultimately BEEEZETFREER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin K #5512 5 HE 12
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 =RREA T (i) 1,970 1,888
Purchase of products from MR EZ FRIEHESR
four related companies ultimately K5 o T
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Z M ERE R A
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin KEER (iii) 2,738 2,341
Consultancy fee paid to XHERETHLCEE
a related company ultimately EFHEEAER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin T e 1l
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —RERT] 827 890
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Other transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing
support services

During the years ended 31st March 2015 and 2014,
the Group participated in the marketing programs and
activities for promoting and enhancing the image of
branded watches supplied by Lucky Linker Limited and
related company. In return, Lucky Linker Limited and
related company subsidised the Group by paying an
advertising subsidy to the Group.

Leasing of offices and warehouses

The Group leased an office space to Lucky Linker
Limited, being one of the three related companies,
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin, during the years ended 31st
March 2015 and 2014. Lucky Linker Limited is a long-
term tenant of the Group and taken into the fact that
Lucky Linker Limited is responsible for the decoration
of the office, the Group offered a discount on the rental
charge for compensating the costs incurred by Lucky
Linker Limited in decoration of the office.

As at 31st March 2015, commitments under operating
leases receivable from the companies over which
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

34. EABHMEALRS (@)

(c) Efth3x5 (&)

U]

(i)

RUESEMRDIZHERIERE

RZE—mER-_T—RAF=A=+—
H & 8 A% E 2 HEHLucky
Linker Limited & BA#& 2 Bl12f#t 2 T i5
HERTEIRES) - DUMREM I RIETF
K % - A ZLucky Linker Limited
MEER R M AEE S ES @ E
BEYAREH -

HERAEREE

RZE—WHFER_TE—RAF=A=+—
HIEFEHHE AEEHEERQE
Lucky Linker Limited (A5 %kEE
FHREBEERBC AL =ZMEER
A) 2 Ef—F) o Lucky Linker Limited
ABAEEZRHHEF - WEEEILucky
Llnker Limited B EHEBWAE - A%
E RS E BTN AREE Lucky
Linker LimitedZ & AEEA Z LA ©

R_T— ﬁfF:ﬂ:+—E IR
EHEANERAR (BBLCEEET
5§37 ﬁ&ﬂﬂﬁ1 FAEES 2 AR R
REEFET -

2015 2014

—E-EF — g4

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Not later than one year R—FR 1,720 1,639
Later than one year and BRA—FRTBBERSE

not later than five year 346 1,762

2,066 3,401

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 to 5 years (2014: 1 to 5 years) and related
commitments are included in Note 37.

WERBEKRTHEEN T —Z2RF (=%
—F: —FRF) RIABEEAHEZER
BIERMEE37
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. EABHEATRR (8)
(c) Other transactions (Continued) (c) HihxX 5 (58)
Notes: (Continued) e - (&)
(ili) Purchase of products (iii) FHBER

The Group purchased of products from the above
related companies during the years ended 31st
March 2015 and 2014 which represented watches,
watch spare parts and components (including watch
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and
repairs to the above related parties. The purchase
of products includes the fees and charges for these

RZZ-—MER-Z-—AF=A=+—
B EFE#RE - AEBEY R EER
ARBERERETE® FTHREMRZTI
At (BREFERET)  EEENF
L% AKERIMFEREE - T
REBRS - Gl T EaBlE A
TREREE REEREBREZFMR
BREARKE -

services.
(d) Balances with related parties (d) FElEALLER
2015 2014
—E-AF —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from FEWIGICEEETF
three (2014: two) related companies BB RGLCAEESZ
ultimately owned by the “H(ZE—mF : mHE)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled BERNEE S REMERR
by Mr. Eav Yin 8,127 5,082
Trade payables due to two (2014: one) ERGCEEZTHREER
related companies ultimately owned RGeSl
by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and ME(ZZE—mF : —fH)
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin MENTE SRR 2,589 1,606
Other payables due to a director of &t # £ André Francois Meierst £
Mr. André Francois Meier (Note) 2 B b e FRIE (A7 i) - 1,167
Note: At 31st March 2015 and 2014, the amount due to a director was Hiat - RZZE—NEN_ZT—RF=A=+—H "

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. BEitid
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were REBETRITEEEREENT :
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T RETF 642 733
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRE 519 524
Investment properties PSR ES 175,900 137,900
Inventories FE 120,901 147,190
Pledged bank deposits B RITFER 1,483 3,303
200,445 289,650
36. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 36. AEIRIIGHIHRT2
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme REERMEBBEARBE IR Y —HRGHMER
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF B ([mEe])TE - ZRESHE ZEERK
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds EECEENHEAS  ASHEAUESHAEE -
under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the MR A W2 R B HBR 58 78 & 5 8 A9 IR K48 AU K
consolidated income statement represents contributions payable N AEERAE B IR TE S R84 BIET A A K
to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of YR ES T EIAHR -
the MPF scheme.
Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state- EHEZECEITBARBETZRIRGTEIKE -
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. ZEBRARCHERFREBNER - AKBEEZET
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their HezB T SRR EERER - A&
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only TEZRAREP 2 BE  ERIEAEZHEEER
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to R e
make the required contribution under the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

37.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

Property rental income earned during the reporting period was
HK$4,726,000 (2014: HK$5,089,000). At 31st March 2015, the
properties held have committed tenants for lease terms from
0.11 to 2.08 years (2014: 0.11 to 2.54 years), whose tenancy
agreements include paying security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as
follows:

37.

EEIRERAG

o

fERWLIAE

RS HBAE 2 EE S KA R4,726,000%
JL(=Z—PU4% : 5,089,00087L) - R=-ZT—hHEF
ZA=Z+T—H BB ZYELERTERENT
0.11F £2.08F (ZZ — U 4F : 0.114F £2.54%F)
2K KA EHZE B NBERLZE

AEERBEBARITZ 2 AAREEERD K
R EERESERIPERAT

2015 2014

—E2-I1F —T-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year 4,056 3,519
Later than one year and not

later than five years 2,858 2,648

6,914 6,167

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail outlets
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.25 to 6.00 years (2014: 0.07
to 6.62 years). Certain rentals for the use of retails outlets are
determined by reference to the revenue of the relevant outlets for
the year and the rentals for certain retails outlets will be escalated
by a fixed percentage per annum.

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable
leases of office and retail store space. Future minimum payments
under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

ERHMIEE

AEBRECLEHERHBAEETHAZEMER
TED - OhER 2 W ETE HIR 50.25% £6.00
F(ZZT—MNF : 0.07F£6.62F) - 5 TZTEH
WHEEGUZFEREONZTERNRATAE -
TEAETEEENHAS T UETHFRIEL -

AEENEEETEZRETTRBEIIAE
ZTEFERE - BIBET A HEEE 2 KRFEN
AT

2015 2014

—E—-FHF —ET-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year TiEB@d—F 104,958 141,286
Later than one year and not A —FTHEA

later than five years HF 322,334 477,262

Later than five years BiRAF - 39,619

427,292 658,167
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgements in the selection and application
of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

(@) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i) Provision for store closure

The provision for store closure of the Group consists
of provisions for store closure costs, compensation to
landlords and other related costs.

The Group recognises and measures a provision for
store closure costs as a provision for onerous contract.
In accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, an onerous
contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.

The Group recognises a provision for store closure
based on the estimated unavoidable costs of meeting
all leases and other obligations under the retail stores,
net of economic benefits expected to be received from
the stores, if any. The Group estimates the provision
based on the amount of compensation payment agreed
with the landlord as a result of early termination of
leases, unfulfilled lease obligations, and economic
benefits estimated to be received from fulfilling the
lease contracts. Management also consults with
retail agencies for certain locations in respect of the
current market trends. The Group also estimates the
provision based on past experience of payout ratio
of the total compensation to the landlords. Estimates
differ depending on the current rent, location, lease
exit terms and management’s assessment of when
the lease term can be terminated early and expected
benefits to be received from fulfilling the leases.
Except for stores which termination contracts have
already been agreed with the landlords, the settlement
of these contracts may be different from the Group’s
estimation subject to the negotiation with the landlords
and the economic benefits estimated to be received.
The Group recognises a provision for compensation to
employees when the Group has a detailed formal plan
for store closure and has communicated the plan to
the employees affected by it. The Group recognises a
provision for other related costs when obligations for
direct expenditures necessarily entailed by the plan
for store closure and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the Group arise.

38.

R §5 ER R B 5F

[ &2 2 51 FIBR B2 14 5t

NRRUSHHBEY ERERREREEE
5t BB 2B {8 M 0 61T f O 8 B B
B LTI AN RN B REE
B TR B3 % B AL IR o R R
CEEEEYNSCEE R

(a) MERAREE S EGK 2RAHR I ER

RERASESFHHRENBRET  BEED
R AT Z &t I

() BREHEE

A& B S RIEMEHE BB RIERE
BAERKRA  EXTWHERBME A
BAE AR BHE

AEEER NG EIEHEARARE
ERBEANRE - REFEEHER
ST M AARABBRIAREE]
BE BEAHERBANERTAN
BAET » 85N A] 8 % m B A R 5
ARz BREENSH — DA -
BHIET Z AT A R BR 4R 1 %
BRMRIERFRA - IIRRETAL
MEEMKARERERITANMESE
B (R4 (B S A BT M 2 P RO BURBIRR -

AEERAEHERBELRESE
ERHTAMAEEREMEMET Ha
BN AR R KA - B TR R AT S
MBI M EEME (E) - REEG
SR BELIREERFIERERRILHE
0 RBOHERD - METHEARY
ity 5t 1% & 15 A0 48 78 ) 2 T =8 JE /O 48 (B
SR EBRENE LB E AT
LBEHATENE - AKETRIE
BERRBELAETEINOIMNLEE
et BE - Bt EERFRAEE
B HERILGER  UREEE
Al 7E & HAPR ) B A SR AT 4% 1L R AT
HAGW R NIRRT - REKRER
EIRIEANNERIN  BRLES
MEREE MAKEM G AR
R B2 15 B DA B A 5 T 2 S
EERETE - B AR EEEHA

BT —HAENERGE XTHAXR
BWBTHEEZXFIER AKREER
BTHRERE EEMERNIH
RO AMAERXHAE MAEIFEILA
SEHFEEBREES  AEBKR®
REMAARE B A A B -
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

38. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(@) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 16 and 31 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
properties and fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)  Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write downs requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write downs of inventories in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. As at 31st
March 2015, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$372,167,000 (2014: HK$469,341,000).

(i) Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. Impairments are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may be uncollectible. The
identification of impairment loss requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
original estimates, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and impairment loss
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31st March 2015, the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables is HK$21,298,000 (2014:
HK$29,933,000).
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38. FABSsHAIERR (&5t (4])

(a)

(b)

EAREESH BER 2 BB YIE (8)

(i) KEWEZAAE

BREMENDABINR  NBILEZE
BEMBER - AR BEZEERRESE
THSRRZBR - KEHERS - A
RABEFTEAEHG REFLZME
TERBMEERTIHRE -

FEEN L EES N E S 3

W16 31 BIEFEEEMEGRERR TE
BRIENAARE  EEBAZBELERABEZ
ZER o AETEBAREZR 2 i B RR M
™

() WEFE

&R R AT B35 1 2 5 fd O 2= T 8
BEFE - —BEHEENBERLEE
TEEEBAIREREEHEEBET
BATFEMR - FBIMOREZEL G
B BYRHMRE AT A ERR - Al
ZEBeRNGEREZHEAN ¥
BEEEOAEARTE ZHAE - R
T-—hAF=-A=+—HB HFEZE@
8 A372,167,000/8 7T (= F — MO :
469,341,000/ L) °

(i) BB REMERERT L E R

MEBBZBENDERYE S M EM
JE U BR SR A B P B8 R ) 2 M e 2 R
fEzarimt - —BEHEARBERK

BB TZHBEA ALK EE - A
Gl E 5 N b FE YR SR AE HBUE

FAREREEREEL A - miEHR
REMTAZER  AZE2FeRE
FE 2 SRR DRI ERIIRRZ
REERARNRESERS - RZT
—AF=A=+—R0 BIRHMEK
R BRI 4 %8 /521,298,000/5 7T (=
= —JO4F : 29,933,000/ 7C) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(iii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision
in accordance with the prevailing tax rules and
regulations, taking into account any special approvals
obtained from relevant tax authorities and any
preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each
location or jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate
current tax provision based on the prevailing tax
rules and regulations and its current best estimates
and assumptions. In the event that future tax rules
and regulations or related circumstances change,
adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial
position. As at 31st March 2015, the carrying amount
of current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities are
HK$3,548,000 (2014: HK$3,548,000) and HK$6,790,000
(2014: HK$6,736,000) respectively.

R §5 ER R B 5F

38. RANE S FIERR {& 5 (4])

(b)

(ifi)

&5t NOAEAE ROV EE IR (&)

P18 8 R 4B R B R

AREHEFAHEM SN G RE A E
2 RIS GED SR B - WE B HEE
BB BESZtE  ARKEEEE
ZEWHESRTZEMELENE
BRIBSAEHIME - REEEBEED A
HEXGHRAFEREZBIEREL
THEE  AEBRBEAREEESEMH
if &F 1 75 7] B8 S A 2 BN B FERR R
BE - MEFHZRETBHEREMN
RURE BB ERIR  HE84F
ZORTEHIE  BEYRAERIETER
BBEEETE -

AEBHEGENBERZ R RS
AZEBMT  EHREZHEBELZR
BiE - ENARRZRETERRBSR -
FEARRBBIEO KR X ABERES
BERT  BRZHEBEEUEEEED
HEAE e EUAEEZEENR
BB - NRZE—RE=ZA=+—
B rBRIEMNBRERECHBEREZ
B ™ 4 %8 5 Bl A3,548,000/8 T (=&
— P04 : 3,548,0007% 7T) 56,790,000
BT (—ZF—PU4F : 6,736,0008 7T) °
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S ERRBAE

39.

40.

41.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31st March 2015, the Company had given corporate
guarantee to a bank in connection with banking facilities
granted to the Group amounting to HK$130,000,000 (2014:
HK$130,000,000). Facilities utilized by the Group as at 31st March
2015 were HK$37,100,000 (2014: HK$74,260,000). The directors
of the Company considered that no recognition was required
because the fair value of such guarantee was insignificant and
that the directors of the Company did not consider it probable that
a claim would be made against the Company under the guarantee.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 31st March 2015, the Group acquired an additional 50% of the
issued shares of Wakmann Watch (International) Company Limited
(“Wakmann”) at a consideration of approximately HK$2,099,000.
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest in Wakmann
at the date of acquisition was approximately HK$5,710,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
HK$5,710,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$3,599,000. The effect of changes in the
ownership interest of the Group in the equity attributable to
owners of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

39.

40.

HERRSH

KR-ZB-—RE=A=+—H A2FAHNE
130,000,000/ 7 (=& — M 4 : 130,000,000
BIL) ZRITMEMMRITEHEEER -
—E-DE=A=t-RTXKEEARESE
/337,100,000 7T (= F — 04 : 74,260,000/8
TL) c ARFEERR  ANRFERZAAEL
PER BABELHER MARREZTT IR
AR A A ERBTAERERE -

BIFERERRESZX S

RZZE—RF=ZA=+—H A5EKEBRE
RERAR ([HRe]) BINZ50%E EITHR
5 RIE4A2,099,00087C - RIKEER © R =
S IEE S M S R EE L A5,710,0005 7T © A
B MR IR S M iR 405,710,000 T - AR
BN AR RRA A2 #wmEHN3,599,000/% 7T ©
REAFEN BEBRAQAFEAMBTEZASE
B EPaT

2015
—E-HF
HK$°000
FET

Carrying amount of non-controlling WHEIE R IR R s 2 AR E A
interests acquired 5,710
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests St FIFE R I B g 25 2 R (& (2,099)
Transaction costs X5 KA (12)
Gain on acquisition recognised within equity A P RERR 2 W s 3,599

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In April 2015, BEEEN (L8) B5HER AR, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement (the
“Agreement”) with a bank in the PRC. Under the Agreement, the
subsidiary was granted a loan of RMB5 million (equivalents to
approximately HK$6 million) for a period of six months. The bank
loan is unsecured and has been used for purchase of inventories.
WA (H8) E5E AR repaid the outstanding bank loans
of RMB5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6 million) and
RMB7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9 million) on 13th
April 2015 and 7th May 2015 respectively.
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RZZE—RFNA  ARARE2EHENBRRE
DREMR(EE)BEFERAR AP HANMBITER
FIERmE ([hE]) - BiEZHE  ZMB AR
T 75,000,0007T A R H (F8E 7 476,000,000
TO)ZANERHER - RITZERAERR AR
BEFE BhRAERM(EE)ZEHHERAGR=
E-HENA+=AR-ZE-HAFRA+E B
7 B8 #%£5,000,0007T A R # (#HE 7 496,000,000
7 71) K&7,000,0007T A K8 (F8E 7 £9,000,000
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42.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015
Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2015.
The Group has not early applied any of the following new
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.
The Group is in the progress of making assessment of what
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded the adoption of them
is unlikely to have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations®
Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contribution*
Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKFRS10, [Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle*
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle®
THFAEEW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

42.

43.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015 (Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1st January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is
permitted.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As further explained in note 4 to the financial statements, due
to the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) during the current year, the presentation and disclosure
of certain items in the financial statements have been revised to
comply with the new requirements.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, this presentation would better reflect the
financial performance of the Group.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHHB

For the year ended 31st March 2015 #HZE—-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFE

RESULTS E 1
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F——F —T-——-F —FT-=F "—T-OF =ZEB-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue BEIA 1,035,326 1,036,249 1,098,593 967,353 718,580
(Loss)/profit before taxation [t Al (E518) % 7 113,876 (50,728) (208,351) (152,990) (34,973)
Income tax FriS % (16,431) (10,042) (393) (196) (54)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE),#F 97,445 (60,770) (208,744) (153,186) (35,027)
Equity attributable to RN
owners of the Company PAN/NEIES YN 97,445 (60,770) (208,746) (153,278) (30,936)
Non-controlling interests IR IR R = - - 2 92 (4,091)
97,445 (60,770) (208,744) (153,186) (35,027)
Basic (loss)/earnings BREXR(EBBR) /BT
per share 3.18¢ (6.12)¢ (20.76)¢ (11.21)¢ (2.11)¢
R A A
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2015 #HE—-ZT—AF=A=+—HILFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEnaE

As at 31st March

R=A=+—8H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

—T——% —T-——-F —T-=F —T-mOF =ZEB-HF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets BEE 789,079 1,075,672 1,053,139 840,152 731,979

Total liabilities BwEE 228,977 527,356 506,112 433,672 320,743

Net assets BEFE 560,102 548,316 547,027 406,480 411,236
Equity attributable to =y

owners of the Company BEAZER 560,102 538,609 537,318 396,679 411,236

Non-controlling interests IR R R E R - 9,707 9,709 9,801 -

Total equity B 560,102 548,316 547,027 406,480 411,236

0
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i
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SHe
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